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The Series F Bonds will be issued only as fully registered bonds without coupons and, when issued, will be registered in the name of Cede & Co.
as Bondowner and nominee for The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), New York, New York.  DTC will act as securities depository for the Series
F Bonds.  Purchases of the Series F Bonds will be made in book-entry form, in the denomination of $5,000 or any multiple thereof.  Purchasers will not
receive certificates representing their interest in Series F Bonds purchased.  So long as Cede & Co. is the Bondowner, as nominee of DTC, references
herein to the Bondowners or registered owners shall mean Cede & Co., as aforesaid, and shall not mean the Beneficial Owners of the Series F Bonds.
See “THE SERIES F BONDS -- Book-Entry-Only System” herein.

Principal of and semiannual interest on the Series F Bonds will be paid by J.P. Morgan Trust Company, National Association, as Paying Agent.
So long as DTC or its nominee, Cede & Co., is the Bondowner, such payments will be made directly to such Bondowner, as more fully described herein.
Interest will be payable on October 1, 2003 and semiannually thereafter on April 1 and October 1 to the Bondowners of record as of the close of business
on the fifteenth day of the month preceding such interest payment date.

The Series F Bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity, including redemption at par in certain circumstances, as set
forth in this Official Statement.

The Series F Bonds shall be special obligations of the Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities Authority (the “Authority”) payable solely
from the Revenues, as defined herein, of the Authority, including payments to J.P. Morgan Trust Company, National Association (the “Trustee”),
successor to Citizens Bank of Massachusetts as Trustee, for the account of the Authority by Simmons College (the “Institution”) in accordance with
the provisions of the Loan and Trust Agreement dated as of May 12, 1998, as amended and supplemented by the First Supplemental Agreement dated
as of December 14, 1999, the Second Supplemental Agreement dated as of May 8, 2001 and the Third Supplemental Agreement dated as of April 8, 2003,
each by and among the Authority, the Institution and the Trustee (as so amended, the “Agreement”).  Such payments pursuant to the Agreement are
a general obligation of the Institution.  As security for the Series F Bonds, and certain other obligations of the Institution as described herein, the
Institution has granted to the Authority a first lien on its Tuition Receipts, as defined in the Agreement.  Reference is made to this Official Statement
for pertinent security provisions of the Series F Bonds and for certain Bondowners’ rights.

The scheduled payments of principal and interest (but not premium) on the Series F Bonds when due other than by reason of optional or special
redemption or acceleration thereof will be guaranteed by a municipal bond new issue insurance policy to be issued concurrently with the delivery of
the Series F Bonds by Financial Guaranty Insurance Company.

THE SERIES F BONDS SHALL NOT BE DEEMED TO CONSTITUTE A DEBT OR LIABILITY OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF
MASSACHUSETTS OR ANY POLITICAL SUBDIVISION THEREOF, OR A PLEDGE OF THE FAITH AND CREDIT OF THE
COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS OR ANY SUCH POLITICAL SUBDIVISION THEREOF, BUT SHALL BE PAYABLE SOLELY
FROM THE REVENUES PROVIDED UNDER THE AGREEMENT.  NEITHER THE FAITH AND CREDIT NOR THE TAXING POWER
OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS OR ANY POLITICAL SUBDIVISION THEREOF IS PLEDGED TO THE PAYMENT
OF THE PRINCIPAL OF OR INTEREST ON THE SERIES F BONDS.  THE ACT DOES NOT IN ANY WAY CREATE A SO-CALLED
MORAL OBLIGATION OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS TO PAY DEBT SERVICE IN THE EVENT OF DEFAULT
BY THE INSTITUTION.  THE AUTHORITY DOES NOT HAVE ANY TAXING POWER.

MATURITIES, AMOUNTS, RATES, AND PRICES OR YIELDS

$18,630,000 Serial Bonds

Due Principal Interest Due Principal Interest
October 1, Amount Rate Yield October 1, Amount Rate Yield

2008 $ 730,000 4.00% 2.64% 2017* $1,120,000 5.00% 4.19%
2009 760,000 4.00 2.95 2018 1,175,000 4.25 4.46
2010 795,000 5.00 3.28 2019* 1,230,000 5.00 4.39
2011 835,000 5.00 3.53 2020* 1,290,000 5.00 4.49
2012 875,000 4.25 3.66 2021* 1,360,000 5.00 4.56
2013 915,000 5.00 3.78 2022* 1,425,000 5.00 4.62
2014* 965,000 5.00 3.89 2023* 1,500,000 5.00 4.68
2015* 1,015,000 5.00 3.99 2024 1,575,000 4.625 4.78
2016* 1,065,000 5.00 4.09

$5,210,000 5% Term Bonds due October 1, 2027* - Yield 4.81%
$13,100,000 5% Term Bonds due October 1, 2033* - Yield 4.85%

(Accrued interest from April 15, 2003 to be added)

The Series F Bonds are offered when, as and if issued and received by the Underwriter, subject to prior sale, to withdrawal or modification of the
offer without notice, and to the approval of their legality and certain other matters by Palmer & Dodge LLP, Boston, Massachusetts, Bond Counsel to the
Authority.  Certain legal matters will be passed upon for the Institution by its counsel, Goodwin Procter LLP, Boston, Massachusetts.  Certain legal matters
will be passed upon for the Underwriter by its counsel, Mintz, Levin, Cohn, Ferris, Glovsky and Popeo, P.C., Boston, Massachusetts.  It is expected that
the Series F Bonds in definitive form will be available for delivery to DTC or its custodial agent in New York, New York on or about April 23, 2003.

April 16, 2003________________________________
†  See “Description of Ratings” herein.
*  Yield to the October 1, 2013 optional redemption date.



 

 

IN CONNECTION WITH THIS OFFERING, THE UNDERWRITER MAY OVER-ALLOT OR EFFECT 
TRANSACTIONS WHICH STABILIZE OR MAINTAIN THE MARKET PRICE OF THE SERIES F BONDS 
AT LEVELS ABOVE THOSE WHICH MIGHT OTHERWISE PREVAIL IN THE OPEN MARKET.  SUCH 
STABILIZING, IF COMMENCED, MAY BE DISCONTINUED AT ANY TIME. 
 
 No dealer, broker, salesperson, or other person has been authorized by the Authority, the Institution, the 
Bond Insurer or the Underwriter to give any information or to make any representations with respect to the Series 
F Bonds, other than those contained in this Official Statement, and, if given or made, such other information or 
representations must not be relied upon as having been authorized by any of the foregoing.  Certain information 
contained herein has been obtained from the Institution, the Bond Insurer, The Depository Trust Company and 
other sources which are believed to be reliable, but is not guaranteed as to accuracy or completeness by, and is 
not to be construed as a representation of, the Authority.  The information and expressions of opinion herein are 
subject to change without notice and neither the delivery of this Official Statement nor any sale made hereunder 
shall, under any circumstances, create any implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the parties 
referred to above since the date hereof. 
 
 The Underwriter has provided the following sentence for inclusion in this Official Statement.  The 
Underwriter has reviewed the information in this Official Statement in accordance with, and as part of, its 
responsibility to investors under the federal securities laws as applied to the facts and circumstances of this 
transaction, but the Underwriter does not guarantee the accuracy or completeness of such information. 
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OFFICIAL STATEMENT 
 

Relating to 
 

$36,940,000 
 

MASSACHUSETTS  HEALTH  AND EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY 
Revenue Bonds, Simmons College Issue, 

Series F 
 

INTRODUCTION 

 Purpose of this Official Statement.  The purpose of this Official Statement is to set forth certain 
information concerning the Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities Authority (the “Authority”) and 
Simmons College (the “Institution”) and the $36,940,000 Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities 
Authority Revenue Bonds, Simmons College Issue, Series F (the “Series F Bonds”) issued under the Loan and 
Trust Agreement dated as of May 12, 1998, as amended by the First Supplemental Agreement dated as of 
December 14, 1999, the Second Supplemental Agreement dated as of May 8, 2001 and the Third Supplemental 
Agreement dated as of April 8, 2003, each by and among the Authority, the Institution and J.P. Morgan Trust 
Company, National Association, as trustee (the “Trustee”) (as so amended, the “Agreement”).  The Series F 
Bonds, together with the Authority’s Variable Rate Demand Variable Mode Revenue Bonds, Simmons College 
Issue, Series E outstanding in the aggregate principal amount of $31,140,000 (the “Series E Bonds”), the 
Authority’s Revenue Bonds, Simmons College Issue, Series D Bonds outstanding in the aggregate principal 
amount of $5,275,000 (the “Series D Bonds”), the Authority’s Revenue Bonds, Simmons College Issue, Series C 
outstanding in the aggregate principal amount of $21,775,000 (the “Series C Bonds”), the Institution’s 
outstanding borrowing  in the amount of $2,783,030.58 (the “Pool B/C Loan”) from the proceeds of the 
Authority’s Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, Capital Asset Program Issue, Series B and Series C (the 
“Pool B/C Bonds”) and any additional Bonds or Additional Indebtedness which may be issued under the 
Agreement, will be secured equally and ratably under the provisions of the Agreement.  The Series F Bonds are 
to be issued in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 614 of the Massachusetts Acts of 1968, as amended 
from time to time (the “Act”) and the Agreement.  The information contained in this Official Statement is 
provided for use in connection with the initial sale of the Series F Bonds.  The definitions of certain terms used 
and not otherwise defined herein are contained in Appendix C-1 -- “DEFINITIONS OF CERTAIN TERMS.” 
 
 Plan of Financing.  The proceeds from the sale of the Series F Bonds (including accrued interest on the 
Series F Bonds to the date of delivery) will be used:  (i) to deposit into the Debt Service Fund interest accruing on 
the Series F Bonds from April 15, 2003 to the date of delivery of the Series F Bonds; (ii) to pay certain costs of 
issuing the Series F Bonds, including the premium for the insurance policy (the “Insurance Policy”) to be issued 
by Financial Guaranty Insurance Company (the “Bond Insurer” or “Insurer”); (iii) to reimburse the Institution for 
internal advances for certain portions of the Project made in anticipation of the issuance of the Series F Bonds; 
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and (iv) to deposit into the Construction Fund the balance of such proceeds, which, together with earnings on 
certain funds, will be used to finance the construction, equipping and completion of the Project.  
 
 A more detailed description of the use of proceeds of the Series F Bonds, including approximate 
amounts and purposes, is included herein under “THE PROJECT” and “ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES 
OF FUNDS.” 
 

SOURCES OF PAYMENT AND SECURITY FOR THE SERIES F BONDS 

 The Series F Bonds are issued pursuant to the Agreement, which provides that to the extent permitted by 
law, it is a general obligation of the Institution.  The Agreement also provides, among other things, that the 
Institution shall make payments to the Trustee equal to principal or sinking fund installments, as the case may be, 
interest on the Series F Bonds and certain other payments required by the Agreement.  The Agreement shall 
remain in full force and effect until such time as all of the Bonds, including the Series F Bonds, and the interest 
thereon have been fully paid or until adequate provision for such payments has been made. 
 
 The Series F Bonds are special obligations of the Authority, equally and ratably secured by and payable 
from a pledge of and lien on, to the extent provided by the Agreement, the moneys received with respect to the 
Series F Bonds by the Trustee for the account of the Authority pursuant to the Agreement. 
 
 The Series F Bonds will be equally and ratably secured with the Series E Bonds, Series D Bonds, Series 
C Bonds, the Pool B/C Loan and any additional Bonds or Additional Indebtedness which may be issued under the 
Agreement.  The obligation of the Institution to make payments under the Agreement is a general obligation of 
the Institution.  The obligation of the Institution to make payments under the Agreement is secured by a lien on 
Tuition Receipts and rights to receive the same.  For a description of the Institution's outstanding indebtedness 
and the security therefor, see Appendix B -- “FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE INSTITUTION.” 
 
 Under the Agreement, the Authority assigns and pledges to the Trustee in trust upon the terms of the 
Agreement (i) all Revenues to be received from the Institution or derived from any security provided thereunder, 
and (ii) all rights to receive such Revenues and the proceeds of such rights.  Under the Act, to the extent 
authorized or permitted by law, the pledge of Revenues is valid and binding from the time when such pledge is 
made and the Revenues and all income and receipts earned on funds held by the Trustee for the account of the 
Authority shall immediately be subject to the lien of such pledge without any physical delivery thereof or further 
act, and the lien of such pledge shall be valid and binding as against all parties having claims of any kind in tort, 
contract, or otherwise against the Authority irrespective of whether such parties have notice thereof. 
 
 The assignment and pledge by the Authority does not include (i) the rights of the Authority pursuant to 
provisions for consent, concurrence, approval or other action by the Authority, notice to the Authority or the 
filing of reports, certificates or other documents with the Authority, or (ii) the powers of the Authority as stated in 
the Agreement to enforce the provisions thereof. 
 
 Payments to the Series F Bondowners in respect of principal of (including sinking fund installments) and 
interest on the Series F Bonds will be further secured by a financial guaranty insurance policy issued by the Bond 
Insurer.  The Bond Insurance Policy guarantees the scheduled payment of principal of (including sinking fund 
installments) and interest on the Series F Bonds which shall be otherwise unpaid by reason of non-payment by 
the Institution of its obligation under the Agreement.  The Bond Insurance Policy does not insure payments 
due with respect to the Series F Bonds by reason of redemption (except mandatory sinking fund 
redemption) or acceleration.  The insurance policy is non-cancelable by the Bond Insurer.  See “BOND 
INSURANCE” herein and Appendix F - “SPECIMEN BOND INSURANCE POLICY” for more information 
and a discussion of the limitations of such insurance. 
 
 Additional Indebtedness.  Under the terms and conditions set forth in the Agreement, the Institution may 
issue additional indebtedness on a parity with the lien on Tuition Receipts and rights to receive such Tuition 
Receipts securing the Series C Bonds, the Pool B/C Loan, the Series D Bonds, the Series E Bonds and the Series 
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F Bonds.  See Appendix C-2 -- “SUMMARY OF THE AGREEMENT” under the heading “Additional 
Indebtedness.” 
 
 Acceleration.  The Trustee may declare all of the Series F Bonds and all other Outstanding Bonds 
immediately due and payable at par prior to maturity upon the occurrence of an Event of Default under the 
Agreement.  See Appendix C-2 -- “SUMMARY OF THE AGREEMENT” under the heading “Remedies for 
Events of Default.”  The trustee for the Pool B/C Bonds may declare the Pool B/C Loan immediately due and 
payable prior to maturity upon the occurrence of an event of default under the Pool B/C Loan agreement. 
 
 So long as the Bond Insurance Policy remains in effect, and provided that the Bond Insurer shall not 
have defaulted on its obligations thereunder, the Bond Insurer is deemed to be the owner of all of the Series F 
Bonds for the purposes of giving consents, notices, directions and waivers under the Agreement and for all 
purposes of the provisions of the Agreement relating to default by the Institution and actions for the protection of 
the Series F Bondowners. 
 
 THE SERIES F BONDS SHALL NOT BE DEEMED TO CONSTITUTE A DEBT, LIABILITY OR 
MORAL OBLIGATION OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS OR ANY POLITICAL 
SUBDIVISION THEREOF, BUT SHALL BE PAYABLE SOLELY FROM THE REVENUES DERIVED BY 
THE AUTHORITY UNDER THE AGREEMENT.  THE AUTHORITY DOES NOT HAVE TAXING 
POWER. 
 
 

THE AUTHORITY 

 The Authority is a body politic and corporate and a public instrumentality of the Commonwealth of 
Massachusetts (the “Commonwealth”), organized and existing under and by virtue of the Act.  The purpose of the 
Authority, as stated in the Act, is essentially to provide assistance for public and private nonprofit institutions for 
higher education, and private nonprofit schools for the handicapped, nonprofit hospitals and their nonprofit 
affiliates, nonprofit nursing homes, and nonprofit cultural institutions in the construction, financing, and 
refinancing of projects to be undertaken in relation to programs for such institutions. 

Authority Membership and Organization 
 
 The Act provides that the Authority shall consist of nine members who shall be appointed by the 
Governor and shall be residents of the Commonwealth.  At least two members shall be associated with 
institutions for higher education, at least two shall be associated with hospitals, at least one shall be 
knowledgeable in the field of state and municipal finance (by virtue of business or other association) and at 
least one shall be knowledgeable in the field of building construction.  All Authority members serve without 
compensation, but are entitled to reimbursement for necessary expenses incurred in the performance of their 
duties as members of the Authority.  The Authority shall elect annually one of its members to serve as 
Chairman and one to serve as Vice Chairman. 
 
 The members of the Authority are as follows:  
 
 DAVID T. HANNAN, Chairman; term as member expires July 1, 2006.   
 
 Mr. Hannan, a resident of Hingham, is President and Chief Executive Officer of South Shore Health & 
Educational Corporation of South Weymouth, Massachusetts, a not-for-profit, tax-exempt organization and the 
parent of South Shore Hospital.  He is a member of the American College of Healthcare Executives, and the 
American Hospital Association. 
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 JOSEPH G. SNEIDER, Secretary; term as member expires July 1, 2005. 
 
 Joseph G. Sneider, a resident of Newton, is Chairman and Chief Financial Officer of C&S Candy Co., 
Inc. located in Brockton and Justice of the Peace of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts.   Mr. Sneider served 
as a trustee of Boston University Medical Center, (University Hospital), Boston.  Mr. Sneider served as Senior 
Vice President of Olympic International Bank & Trust of Boston.  He also served on a number of public 
boards and commissions, and he belongs to several civic associations. 
 

ROBERT E. FLYNN, M.D.; term as member expires July 1, 2006.   
  

Dr. Flynn, a resident of Dedham, is the former Chair of the Board of Caritas Christi, a current member 
of the Board of Governors of Caritas Christi, the former Secretary of Health Care Services for the Archdiocese 
of Boston, the Past Chairperson of the Massachusetts Hospital Association, and former Chairman of the 
Department of Medicine at St. Elizabeth's Medical Center of Boston.  In 1991, Dr. Flynn was named a 
Distinguished Professor by Tufts University School of Medicine.  He is a Trustee of St. Elizabeth’s Medical 
Center, Good Samaritan Hospice and St. Mary’s Women and Infant’s Center.  His current memberships in 
Medical Societies include the Boston Society of Psychiatry and Neurology, the Massachusetts Medical 
Society, and the American Medical Association, and he is a Fellow of the American Academy of Psychiatry 
and Neurology. 
 

MARVIN A. GORDON; term as member expires July 1, 2003. 
 
 Mr. Gordon, a resident of Milton, is Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer of Gordon 
Logistics, L.L.C. in Norwood, Massachusetts.  From 1994 to 1996, Mr. Gordon served on the board of 
Directors to Techniek Development Co. of San Diego, California.  He also served as Chairman of the Board of 
US Trust Norfolk (Milton Bank and Trust) from 1974 to 1976 and as Vice President and Member of the 
Executive Committee from 1971 to 1974.  Mr. Gordon has been actively engaged in non-profit, charitable and 
civic activities.  His affiliations include Treasurer and Chairman of the Finance Committee of Milton Hospital 
Corporation, President, Milton Fuller Housing Corporation, and Corporator of Curry College.  Mr. Gordon has 
been elected to and appointed to a number of public boards and belongs to several civic associations.  Mr. 
Gordon holds a degree from Harvard College and Harvard Business School. 
 
 JOHN E. KAVANAGH, III; term as member expires July 1, 2004. 
 
 Mr. Kavanagh, a resident of Ipswich, is President and Chairman of William A. Berry & Son, Inc., one 
of the oldest construction companies in the country.  During his 19 years as President, he has redirected the 
company’s focus from restoration specialties to a full-service building and construction management 
organization, with emphasis on meeting the full range of customer needs: planning, design, construction, 
operation and maintenance services.  Mr. Kavanagh is a Trustee and the former Chairman of the Board of the 
North Shore Music Theater, Corporator of Brigham and Women’s Hospital and Partners Healthcare, Trustee 
and member of Board of Directors of Massachusetts Eye and Ear Infirmary, Corporator of Danvers Savings 
Bank and a former member of Tufts University Board of Overseers.  
 
 ALLEN R. LARSON; term as member expires July 1, 2007. 
 
 Allen R. Larson, a resident of Yarmouth Port, is the founding principal of a law firm and a separate 
consulting firm, the Enterprise Management Group, that advise business and non-profit clients on matters of 
government regulation, business competition, market entry, and economic development.  Prior to establishing 
his law firm in 1984, Mr. Larson worked as an antitrust attorney for the Federal Trade Commission in 
Washington, D.C.  Currently, he is a Trustee of Cape Cod Community College, President of the Cape Cod 
Center for Sustainability, a Director of the YMCA-Cape Cod, and a Member of the Yarmouth Town Finance 
Committee.  Mr. Larson graduated from Dartmouth College and earned a J.D. from Albany Law School and an 
M.B.A. from the University of Minnesota. 
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 DAVID E. PHELPS; term as member expires July 1, 2009. 
 
 Mr. Phelps, a resident of Pittsfield, is President and Chief Executive Officer of Berkshire Health 
Systems.  From 1989 to 1992, Mr. Phelps was the Senior Vice President of Berkshire Health Systems and 
Chief Operating Officer of Berkshire Health Systems Management Services, Inc.  His honors and board 
memberships include Past Chairman, Pittsfield Economic Development Authority; President of the 
Massachusetts Council of Community Hospitals; Board of Trustees of the Massachusetts Hospital Association; 
Board Member, Massachusetts Board of Directors of BankNorth; Corporator of the Boys & Girls Club of 
Pittsfield; Corporator of the Berkshire Museum; and 1997 Recipient of the “Lawrence W. Strattner 
Distinguished Citizen Award”.  Mr. Phelps holds a B.A. from St. Mary’s University and an M.B.A. from 
Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute. 
 
       ROBERT M. PLATT; term as member expires July 1, 2009. 
 
 Mr. Platt, a resident of Newton, is President of National Consulting Inc. a business development and 
marketing strategy organization which assists clients in achieving their true market potential.  Mr. Platt works 
in conjunction with both state and federal government to facilitate the exchange of ideas and opportunities for 
clients.  His board memberships include Past President of the Newton Athletic Association; Past Board of 
Director of the Newton Youth Soccer for Boys and Girls; and Past Board Member of Youth Commission for 
the City of Newton.  Mr. Platt’s current board memberships include Commissioner of Parks and Recreation of 
his ward in Newton; Advisory Board Member for Second Step which aids women who have suffered domestic 
violence and abuse; and Member of the Board of Trustees for Curry College.  Mr. Platt holds a B.A. from 
Curry College. 
  

RINA K. SPENCE; term as member expired July 1, 2001.  Ms. Spence will continue to serve until she 
is reappointed or her successor takes office. 
 

Ms. Spence, a resident of Cambridge, is President and Chief Executive Officer of SpenceCare 
International, L.L.C. providing healthcare management consulting to clients in the U.S. and abroad, and former 
Chief Executive Officer of iEmily.com, Inc. a health and wellness website for teen girls.  She was also founder 
of Spence Centers for Women’s Health, a network of comprehensive outpatient health facilities.  Prior to 
Spence Centers for Women’s Health, Ms. Spence served as the president and chief executive of Emerson 
Hospital for ten years.  She was also the founding executive director of the Commonwealth Health Care 
Corporation; a prepaid managed care plan for health care delivery to Medicaid recipients.  Ms. Spence has 
been actively engaged in the civic life of Boston and its corporate affairs for more than 25 years.  Ms. Spence 
is a Director of Berkshire Life Insurance Company of America; and a Trustee of the State Street Master Trust.  
Ms. Spence holds degrees from Boston University and Harvard University’s John F. Kennedy School of 
Government. 
 
Staff and Advisors 
 
 BENSON T. CASWELL, a resident of North Andover, was appointed Executive Director of the 
Authority on April 9, 2002, and is responsible for the management of the Authority’s affairs.  From 1992 
through 2002, Mr. Caswell worked for Ponder & Co. in Chicago where he was a Senior Vice President.  From 
1987 through 1992, he was Vice President of Ziegler Securities, Chicago, Illinois.  From 1983 through 1986, 
he was an attorney with Gardner, Carton & Douglas.  Mr. Caswell holds a Juris Doctor from the University of 
Chicago, an MBA from Lehigh University and a BS from the University of Maine.      
 
 PALMER & DODGE LLP, attorneys of Boston, Massachusetts, are serving as General Counsel and as 
Bond Counsel to the Authority and will submit their approving opinion with regard to the legality of the Series F 
Bonds as provided by the Agreement in substantially the form attached hereto as Appendix D. 
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PUBLIC FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT, INC., is serving as financial consultant to the Authority.  The financial 
consultant advises the Authority in connection with the issuance of its obligations and certain other financial 
matters. 
  
 The Act provides that the Authority may employ such other counsel, engineers, architects, accountants, 
construction and financial experts, or others as the Authority deems necessary. 
 
Powers of the Authority 

 Under the Act, the Authority is authorized and empowered, among other things, directly or by and 
through a participating institution for higher education, a participating school for the handicapped, a participating 
hospital or hospital affiliate, a participating nursing home or a participating cultural institution as its agent, to 
acquire real and personal property and to take title thereto in its own name or in the name of one or more 
participants as its agent; to construct, reconstruct, remodel, maintain, manage, enlarge, alter, add to, repair, 
operate, lease, as lessee or lessor, and regulate any project; to enter into contracts for any or all of such purposes, 
or for the management and operation of a project; to issue bonds, bond anticipation notes and other obligations, 
and to fund or refund the same; to fix and revise from time to time and charge and collect rates, rents, fees and 
charges for the use of and for the services furnished or to be furnished by a project or any portion thereof and to 
enter into contracts in respect thereof; to establish rules and regulations for the use of a project or any portion 
thereof; to receive and accept from any public agency loans or grants for or in the aid of the construction of a 
project or any portion thereof; to mortgage any project and the site thereof for the benefit of the holders of 
revenue bonds issued to finance such projects; to make loans to any participant for the cost of a project or to 
refund outstanding obligations, mortgages or advances issued, made or given by such participant for the cost of a 
project; to charge participants its administrative costs and expenses incurred; to acquire any federally guaranteed 
security and to pledge or use such security to secure or provide for the repayment of its bonds; and to do all things 
necessary or convenient to carry out the purposes of the Act.  Additionally, the Authority may undertake a joint 
project or projects for two or more participants. 
 
 The Authority has heretofore authorized and issued certain series of its revenue bonds for public and 
private colleges and universities, and private hospitals and their affiliates, community providers, cultural 
institutions, schools for the handicapped and nursing homes in the Commonwealth.  Each series of revenue bonds 
has been a special obligation of the Authority. 
 
 The Authority expects to enter into separate agreements with eligible institutions in the Commonwealth 
for the purpose of financing projects for such institutions.  Each series of bonds issued by the Authority 
constitutes a separate obligation of the borrowing institution for such series, and the general funds of the 
Authority are not pledged to any bonds or notes. 
 

THE SERIES F BONDS 

Description of the Series F Bonds 
 
 The Series F Bonds will be dated April 15, 2003 and will bear interest from such date, payable on 
October 1, 2003 and on each April 1 and October 1 thereafter at the rates set forth on the cover page hereof and 
will mature on October 1 of the indicated years and in the principal amounts set forth on the cover page hereof. 
 
 Subject to the provisions discussed under “Book-Entry-Only System” below, the Series F Bonds are 
issuable as fully registered bonds without coupons in the minimum denomination of $5,000 or any multiple 
thereof.  Principal or redemption premium, if any, of the Series F Bonds will be payable at the principal corporate 
trust office of the Paying Agent, and interest on the Series F Bonds will be paid by check or draft mailed to the 
registered owner as of the fifteenth day of the month preceding the date on which the interest is to be paid (the 
“Record Date”), or by wire transfer as provided in the Agreement. 
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Book-Entry-Only System 
 
 The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), New York, New York, will act as securities depository for the 
Series F Bonds.  The Series F Bonds will be issued as fully-registered securities registered in the name of Cede & 
Co. (DTC’s partnership nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of 
DTC.  One fully registered Series F Bond certificate will be issued for each maturity of the Series F Bonds, each 
in the aggregate principal amount of such maturity, and will be deposited with DTC.   
 
 DTC, the world’s largest depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New York 
Banking Law, a “banking organization” within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the 
Federal Reserve System, a “clearing corporation” within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial 
Code, and a “clearing agency” registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange 
Act of 1934, as amended.  DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 2 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S. 
equity issues, corporate and municipal debt issues, and money market instruments from over 85 countries that 
DTC’s participants (“Direct Participants”) deposit with DTC.  DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement 
among Direct Participants of sales and other securities transactions in deposited securities, through electronic 
computerized book-entry transfers and pledges between Direct Participants’ accounts.  This eliminates the need 
for physical movement of securities certificates.  Direct Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities 
brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations, and certain other organizations.  DTC is a 
wholly-owned subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation (“DTCC”).  DTCC, in turn, is owned 
by a number of Direct Participants of DTC and Members of the National Securities Clearing Corporation, 
Government Securities Clearing Corporation, MBS Clearing Corporation, and Emerging Markets Clearing 
Corporation (NSCC, GSCC, MBSCC and EMCC, also subsidiaries of DTCC), as well as by the New York Stock 
Exchange, Inc., the American Stock Exchange LLC, and the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc.  
Access to the DTC system is also available to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and 
dealers, banks, trust companies and clearing corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship 
with a Direct Participant, either directly or indirectly (“Indirect Participants”).  DTC has Standard & Poor’s 
highest rating:  AAA.  The DTC Rules applicable to its Participants are on file with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission.  More information about DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com. 
 
 Purchases of the Series F Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, 
which will receive a credit for the Series F Bonds on DTC’s records.  The ownership interest of each actual 
purchaser of each Series F Bond (“Beneficial Owner”) is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect 
Participants’ records.  Beneficial Owners will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their purchase.  
Beneficial Owners are, however, expected to receive written confirmations providing details of the transaction, as 
well as periodic statements of their holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial 
Owner entered into the transaction.  Transfers of ownership interests in the Series F Bonds are to be 
accomplished by entries made on the books of Direct and Indirect Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial 
Owners.  Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing their ownership interests in the Series F 
Bonds, except in the event that use of the book-entry only system for the Series F Bonds is discontinued. 
 
 To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Series F Bonds deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are 
registered in the name of DTC’s partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be requested by an 
authorized representative of DTC.  The deposit of Series F Bonds with DTC and their registration in the name of 
Cede & Co. or such other nominee do not effect any change in beneficial ownership.  DTC has no knowledge of 
the actual Beneficial Owners of the Series F Bonds; DTC’s records reflect only the identity of the Direct 
Participants to whose accounts such Series F Bonds are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial 
Owners.  The Direct and Indirect Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on 
behalf of their customers. 
 
 Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct Participants 
to Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be 
governed by arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect 
from time to time. 
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 Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC.  If less than all of the Series F Bonds are being redeemed, 
DTC’s practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in such Series F Bonds 
to be redeemed. 
 
 Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to Series F 
Bonds unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC’s Procedures.  Under its usual 
procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to the Authority as soon as possible after the record date.  The 
Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.’s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts 
the Series F Bonds are credited on the record date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy). 
 
 Principal and interest payments on the Series F Bonds will be made to Cede & Co., or such other 
nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC.  DTC’s practice is to credit Direct 
Participants’ accounts, upon DTC’s receipt of funds and corresponding detail information from the Authority or 
Trustee or Paying Agent on payable date in accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC’s records.  
Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions and customary 
practices, as is the case with securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in “street 
name,” and will be the responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC, the Paying Agent, the Institution or the 
Authority, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time.  Payment of 
principal and interest to Cede & Co. (or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative 
of DTC) is the responsibility of the Authority, the Trustee or the Paying Agent, disbursement of such payments to 
Direct Participants shall be the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial 
Owners shall be the responsibility of Direct and Indirect Participants. 
 
 THE FOREGOING INFORMATION IN THIS SECTION CONCERNING DTC AND DTC’S BOOK-
ENTRY SYSTEM HAS BEEN OBTAINED FROM SOURCES THAT THE AUTHORITY BELIEVES TO BE 
RELIABLE, BUT NONE OF THE AUTHORITY, THE INSTITUTION OR THE UNDERWRITER TAKES 
ANY RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCURACY THEREOF. 

 RESPONSIBILITY OF THE AUTHORITY, INSTITUTION, TRUSTEE AND PAYING AGENT.  
NONE OF THE AUTHORITY, THE INSTITUTION, THE TRUSTEE OR THE PAYING AGENT WILL 
HAVE ANY RESPONSIBILITY OR OBLIGATIONS TO DTC PARTICIPANTS OR THE PERSONS FOR 
WHOM THEY ACT AS NOMINEES WITH RESPECT TO THE PAYMENTS TO OR THE PROVIDING OF 
NOTICE FOR DTC PARTICIPANTS, INDIRECT PARTICIPANTS, OR BENEFICIAL OWNERS. 

 SO LONG AS CEDE & CO. IS THE REGISTERED OWNER OF THE SERIES F BONDS, AS 
NOMINEE OF DTC, REFERENCES HEREIN TO THE BONDOWNERS OR REGISTERED OWNERS OF 
THE SERIES F BONDS SHALL MEAN CEDE & CO. AND SHALL NOT MEAN THE BENEFICIAL 
OWNERS OF THE SERIES F BONDS. 
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 Certificated Bonds.  DTC may discontinue providing its services as securities depository with respect to 
the Series F Bonds at any time by giving reasonable notice to the Authority or the Trustee.  In addition, the 
Authority may determine that continuation of the system of book-entry transfers through DTC (or a successor 
securities depository) is not in the best interests of the Beneficial Owners.  If for either reason the Book-Entry-
Only system is discontinued, Series F Bond certificates will be delivered as described in the Agreement and the 
Beneficial Owner, upon registration of certificates held in the Beneficial Owner’s name, will become the Series F 
Bondowner.  Thereafter, the Series F Bonds may be exchanged for an equal aggregate principal amount of the 
Series F Bonds in other authorized denominations upon surrender thereof at the principal corporate trust office of 
the Paying Agent.  The transfer of any Series F Bond may be registered on the books maintained by the Paying 
Agent for such purpose only upon assignment in the form satisfactory to the Paying Agent.  For every exchange 
or registration of transfer of the Series F Bonds, the Authority and the Paying Agent may make a charge sufficient 
to reimburse them for any tax or other governmental charge required to be paid with respect to such exchange or 
registration of transfer, but no other charge may be made to the Series F Bondowner for any exchange or 
registration of transfer of the Series F Bonds.  The Paying Agent will not be required to transfer or exchange any 
Series F Bond during the notice period preceding any redemption if such Series F Bond (or any part thereof) is 
eligible to be selected or has been selected for redemption.   
 
Redemption of the Series F Bonds 
 
 Optional Redemption of the Series F Bonds.  The Series F Bonds are subject to optional redemption 
prior to maturity, on and after October 1, 2013 at the option of the Authority with the written consent of the 
Institution or by the written direction of the Institution to the Authority and the Trustee, as a whole or in part at 
any time, in such order of maturity or sinking fund installments as directed by the Institution at their principal 
amount, plus accrued interest to the redemption date. 
 
 Mandatory Redemption.  The Series F Bonds maturing on October 1, 2027, shall be redeemed from 
sinking fund installments beginning on October 1, 2025 and October 1 of each year thereafter as set forth below, 
at their principal amounts without premium plus accrued interest to the redemption date: 
 
   Sinking Fund 
  Year Installment 

  2025  $1,650,000 
  2026 1,735,000 
  2027† 1,825,000   
____________________ 
†  Final Maturity. 
 
 The Series F Bonds maturing on October 1, 2033, shall be redeemed from sinking fund installments 
beginning on October 1, 2028 and October 1 of each year thereafter as set forth below, at their principal amounts 
without premium plus accrued interest to the redemption date: 
 
 
  Sinking Fund   Sinking Fund 
 Year Installment Year   Installment 

 2028 $1,920,000 2031   $2,230,000 
 2029   2,020,000 2032     2,345,000 
 2030   2,120,000 2033†      2,465,000   
_____________________ 
†  Final Maturity. 
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 Special Redemption.  The Series F Bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity, as a whole or in 
part at any time, in such order of maturity or sinking fund installments as directed by the Institution, at their 
principal amounts, without premium, plus accrued interest to the redemption date from excess moneys in the 
Construction Fund established under the Agreement.  See Appendix C-2 -- “SUMMARY OF THE 
AGREEMENT” under the heading “Redemption Fund.”  If the amount available in the Redemption Fund to 
redeem the Series F Bonds at any time is less than $50,000, the Trustee may, and upon written direction of the 
Institution shall, transfer it to the Debt Service Fund for credit against deposits otherwise required to be made 
therein with respect to principal instead of calling Bonds for redemption. 
 
 Selection of the Series F Bonds.  If less than all the Series F Bonds of a maturity are to be redeemed, the 
portion of the Series F Bonds to be redeemed shall be selected by the Trustee by lot or in any customary manner 
of selection as determined by the Trustee; provided, however, that so long as DTC or its nominee is the 
Bondowner, the particular portions of the Series F Bonds to be redeemed shall be selected by DTC in such 
manner as DTC may determine.  If a Series F Bond is of a denomination in excess of five thousand dollars 
($5,000), portions of the principal amount in the amount of five thousand dollars ($5,000) or any multiple thereof 
may be redeemed. 
 
 Purchase in Lieu of Redemption.  The Institution may purchase Series F Bonds of any maturity and 
credit them against the principal payment for such maturity or, as the case may be, any sinking fund installment 
for such maturity at the principal amount or applicable redemption price, as the case may be, by delivering them 
to the Trustee for cancellation at least sixty (60) days before the principal payment date or sinking fund 
installment date. 
 
 Notice of Redemption and Other Notices.  So long as DTC or its nominee is the Bondowner, the 
Authority, the Trustee and the Paying Agent will recognize DTC or its nominee as the Bondowner for all 
purposes, including notices and voting.  Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to DTC 
Participants, by DTC Participants to Indirect Participants, and by DTC Participants and Indirect Participants to 
Beneficial Owners, will be governed by arrangements among them, subject to any statutory and regulatory 
requirements which may be in effect from time to time. 
 
 The Trustee shall give notice of redemption to the Bondowners not less than thirty (30) days nor more 
than forty-five (45) days prior to the date fixed for redemption.  Failure to mail notice to a particular Bondowner, 
or any defect in the notice to such Bondowner, shall not affect the redemption of any other Series F Bond.  So 
long as DTC or its nominee is the Bondowner, any failure on the part of DTC or failure on the part of a nominee 
of a Beneficial Owner (having received notice from a DTC Participant or otherwise) to notify the Beneficial 
Owner so affected shall not affect the validity of the redemption. 
 
 Effect of Redemption.  On the redemption date, the redemption price of each Series F Bond to be 
redeemed will become due and payable; and from and after such date, notice having been properly given and 
amounts having been made available and set aside from such redemption in accordance with the provisions of the 
Agreement, notwithstanding that any Series F Bonds called for redemption have not been surrendered, no further 
interest will accrue on any Series F Bonds called for redemption. 
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Principal, Sinking Fund Installments, and Interest Requirements 
 
 The following tables sets forth, for each respective fiscal year ending June 30, the amounts required to be 
made available by the Institution in such year for payment of the principal of or sinking fund installments on the 
Series F Bonds, interest on the Series F Bonds, total debt service on the Series F Bonds, debt service on 
indebtedness that is secured on a parity with the Series F Bonds as to the lien on Tuition Receipts, debt service on 
other indebtedness and total debt service. 
 

  Series F Bonds   
Fiscal Year 

Ending 
June 30, 

 
Principal or 

Sinking Fund 
Installments 

 
 

Interest 

Total Debt  
Service on the  
Series F Bonds 

Debt Service 
on other 

Indebtedness1 

 
Total Debt 

Service 
 

2003    $2,908,897  $2,908,897 
2004  $1,740,398 $1,740,398 3,628,896  5,369,294 
2005  1,810,819 1,810,819 3,741,047  5,551,866 
2006  1,810,819 1,810,819 3,907,113  5,717,932 
2007  1,810,819 1,810,819 3,972,646  5,783,465 
2008  1,810,819 1,810,819 4,042,890  5,853,709 
2009 $  730,000 1,796,219 2,526,219 4,112,622  6,638,841 
2010 760,000 1,766,419 2,526,419 4,039,587  6,566,006 
2011 795,000 1,731,344 2,526,344 3,926,874  6,453,218 
2012 835,000 1,690,594 2,525,594 3,972,133  6,497,727 
2013 875,000 1,651,125 2,526,125 4,019,215  6,545,340 
2014 915,000 1,609,656 2,524,656 4,021,806  6,546,462 
2015 965,000 1,562,656 2,527,656 4,021,500  6,549,156 
2016 1,015,000 1,513,156 2,528,156 4,017,029  6,545,185 
2017 1,065,000 1,461,156 2,526,156 4,022,974  6,549,130 
2018 1,120,000 1,406,531 2,526,531 4,019,213  6,545,744 
2019 1,175,000 1,353,563 2,528,563 4,025,397  6,553,960 
2020 1,230,000 1,297,844 2,527,844 4,021,407  6,549,251 
2021 1,290,000 1,234,844 2,524,844 4,031,136  6,555,980 
2022 1,360,000 1,168,594 2,528,594 4,029,359  6,557,953 
2023 1,425,000 1,098,969 2,523,969 4,031,452  6,555,421 
2024 1,500,000 1,025,844 2,525,844 4,032,067  6,557,911 
2025 1,575,000 951,922 2,526,922 4,031,003  6,557,925 
2026 1,650,000 874,250 2,524,250 4,032,838  6,557,088 
2027 1,735,000 789,625 2,524,625 4,037,171  6,561,796 
2028 1,825,000 700,625 2,525,625 4,038,598  6,564,223 
2029 1,920,000 607,000 2,527,000 4,036,901  6,563,901 
2030 2,020,000 508,500 2,528,500 2,541,046  5,069,546 
2031 2,120,000 405,000 2,525,000  2,525,000 
2032 2,230,000 296,250 2,526,250  2,526,250 
2033 2,345,000 181,875 2,526,875  2,526,875 
2034 2,465,000 61,625 2,526,625  2,526,625 

 
1  This represents debt service on the Series C Bonds, Series D Bonds, Series E Bonds and Pool B/C Loan that are secured on parity with the 
Series F Bonds as to the lien on Tuition Receipts.  Excludes debt service on Series D Bonds that have been refunded.  For Series E Bonds, 
represents interest calculated at the fixed rate payable under the hedge agreement, the remarketing agent fee and initial liquidity fee.  For the Pool 
B/C Loan, which bears interest at a variable rate, debt service is estimated based on a rate of 2%. 

 

ADDITIONAL INDEBTEDNESS ON A PARITY WITH THE SERIES F BONDS 

 The Agreement authorizes the Authority at the Institution’s request to issue additional Bonds or 
Additional Indebtedness on parity with the lien on Tuition Receipts securing the Series C Bonds, the Series D 
Bonds, the Pool B/C Loan, the Series E Bonds and the Series F Bonds.  For additional information concerning the 
incurrence of additional Bonds or Additional Indebtedness, see Appendix C-2 -- “SUMMARY OF THE 
AGREEMENT” under the heading “Additional Indebtedness.” 
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INVESTORS SHOULD BE AWARE THAT THE TEXT OF THE FOLLOWING SECTION ENTITLED 
“BOND INSURANCE” WAS FURNISHED BY FINANCIAL GUARANTY INSURANCE COMPANY.  
THESE PROVISIONS SHOULD BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH THIS OFFICIAL 
STATEMENT AS A WHOLE.  
 

BOND INSURANCE 

 Concurrently with the issuance of the Series F Bonds, Financial Guaranty Insurance Company (the 
“Bond Insurer” or “Financial Guaranty”) will issue its Municipal Bond New Issue Insurance Policy (the 
“Policy”) for the Series F Bonds.  The Policy unconditionally guarantees the payment of that portion of the 
principal or accreted value (if applicable) of and interest on the Series F Bonds which has become due for 
payment, but shall be unpaid by reason of nonpayment by the Institution.  The Bond Insurer will make such 
payments to U.S. Bank Trust National Association, or its successor as its agent (the “Fiscal Agent”), on the 
later of the date on which such principal, accreted value or interest (as applicable) is due or on the business day 
next following the day on which the Bond Insurer shall have received telephonic or telegraphic notice, 
subsequently confirmed in writing, or written notice by registered or certified mail, from an owner of Series F 
Bonds or the Paying Agent of the nonpayment of such amount by the Institution.  The Fiscal Agent will 
disburse such amount due on any Series F Bond to its owner upon receipt by the Fiscal Agent of evidence 
satisfactory to the Fiscal Agent of the owner's right to receive payment of the principal, accreted value or 
interest (as applicable) due for payment and evidence, including any appropriate instruments of assignment, 
that all of such owner's rights to payment of such principal, accreted value or interest (as applicable) shall be 
vested in the Bond Insurer.  The term “nonpayment” in respect of a Series F Bond includes any payment of 
principal, accreted value or interest (as applicable) made to an owner of a Series F Bond which has been 
recovered from such owner pursuant to the United States Bankruptcy Code by a trustee in bankruptcy in 
accordance with a final, nonappealable order of a court having competent jurisdiction. 
 
 The Policy is non-cancellable and the premium will be fully paid at the time of delivery of the Series F 
Bonds.  The Policy covers failure to pay principal or accreted value (if applicable) of the Series F Bonds on 
their respective stated maturity dates or dates on which the same shall have been duly called for mandatory 
sinking fund redemption, and not on any other date on which the Series F Bonds may have been otherwise 
called for redemption, accelerated or advanced in maturity, and covers the failure to pay an installment of 
interest on the stated date for its payment. 
 
 Generally, in connection with its insurance of an issue of municipal securities, the Bond Insurer 
requires, among other things, (i) that it be granted the power to exercise any rights granted to the holders of 
such securities upon the occurrence of an event of default, without the consent of such holders, and that such 
holders may not exercise such rights without the Bond Insurer’s consent, in each case so long as the Bond 
Insurer has not failed to comply with its payment obligations under its insurance policy; and (ii) that any 
amendment or supplement to or other modification of the principal legal documents be subject to the Bond 
Insurer’s consent.  The specific rights, if any, granted to the Bond Insurer in connection with its insurance of 
the Series F Bonds are set forth in the description of the principal legal documents appearing elsewhere in this 
Official Statement.   
 
 This Official Statement contains a section regarding the ratings assigned to the Series F Bonds and 
reference should be made to such section for a discussion of such ratings and the basis for their assignment to 
the Series F Bonds.  Reference should be made to the description of the Institution for a discussion of the 
ratings, if any, assigned to such entity's outstanding parity debt that is not secured by credit enhancement. 
 
 The Policy is not covered by the Property/Casualty Insurance Security Fund specified in Article 76 of 
the New York Insurance Law. 
 
 Financial Guaranty is a wholly-owned subsidiary of FGIC Corporation (the “Corporation”), a 
Delaware holding company.  The Corporation is a subsidiary of General Electric Capital Corporation (“GE 
Capital”).  Neither the Corporation nor GE Capital is obligated to pay the debts of or the claims against 
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Financial Guaranty.  Financial Guaranty is a monoline financial guaranty insurer domiciled in the State of New 
York and subject to regulation by the State of New York Insurance Department.  As of December 31, 2002, the 
total capital and surplus of Financial Guaranty was approximately $978 million.  Financial Guaranty prepares 
financial statements on the basis of both statutory accounting principles and generally accepted accounting 
principles.  Copies of such financial statements may be obtained by writing to Financial Guaranty at 125 Park 
Avenue, New York, New York 10017, Attention: Communications Department (telephone number: 212-312-
3000) or to the New York State Insurance Department at 25 Beaver Street, New York, New York 10004-2319, 
Attention: Financial Condition Property/Casualty Bureau (telephone number: 212-480-5187). 
 

RIGHTS OF THE BOND INSURER 

 Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default under the Agreement, the Series F Bonds may, with the 
consent of the Bond Insurer unless the Bond Insurer is in default under the Bond Insurance Policy, and shall at 
the direction of the Bond Insurer, be accelerated. So long as the Bond Insurer is not in default under the Bond 
Insurance Policy, the Bond Insurer shall, under the terms of the Agreement, at all times be deemed to be the 
sole owner of the Series F Bonds for (a) all purposes of the provisions in the Agreement relating to default by 
the Institution and actions for protection of the Bondowners and (b) the purpose of giving consent and 
direction when consent of the Bondowners is required by the Agreement, other than for the purpose of making 
amendments which require the unanimous written consent of the affected Bondowners.  If the Bond Insurer 
pays the principal, mandatory sinking fund installments or interest on any Series F Bonds pursuant to the terms 
of the Bond Insurance Policy, the Bond Insurer will be subrogated to the rights of the owners of such Series F 
Bonds granted under the Agreement to receive payment of principal or mandatory sinking fund installments 
on, and interest on, the Series F Bonds.   
 

THE PROJECT 

 The project involves the financing of a number of renovations, additions and improvements, including 
renovations, improvements and roof replacement at the Institution’s main academic building; construction of an 
approximately 15,000 square foot addition and exterior design changes to the Institution’s library; renovation and 
upgrading of the Institution’s Science Center; renovation and improvements to the Institution’s residence campus, 
repairs to the President’s House, as well as other construction, renovation and repair on the Institution’s campus.  
See Appendix A -- “LETTER FROM THE INSTITUTION -- Future Building Plans -- The Project” and 
Appendix C-1 -- “DEFINITIONS OF CERTAIN TERMS.”  
 

The Agreement states that any required review by the Secretary of Environmental Affairs under the 
Massachusetts Environmental Policy Act (“MEPA”) and by the Massachusetts Historical Commission 
(“MHC”) be completed before moneys in the Construction Fund may be applied to the payment of costs of 
those portions of the Project to which such approvals relate.  While such review processes involve public 
participation and the exercise of regulatory discretion, the Institution expects to complete any required MEPA 
or MHC review processes in a timely fashion.  In addition, the Institution will need to secure other state and 
local approvals and permits in connection with the construction of the Project.  The Institution expects that all the 
necessary permits and approvals for the Project will be obtained when needed.  In the event that any required 
permits or approvals are not received, or the Institution determines that conditions imposed by any of the permits 
or approvals are unacceptable, any excess moneys remaining in the Construction Fund are expected to be applied 
to the costs of eligible substitute projects. 
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ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS 

 The proceeds from the sale of the Series F Bonds (excluding accrued interest) are expected to be applied 
as follows: 
 
 Sources of Funds 
 

Principal Amount of the Series F Bonds $36,940,000.00 
Net Original Issue Premium 1,175,743.95 
  Total Sources of Funds $38,115,743.95 

 
 Uses of Funds 
 

Deposit to Construction Fund for Project $37,097,204.95 
Costs of Issuance (including bond insurance premium  
  and Underwriter's discount) 1,018,539.00 
  Total Uses of Funds $38,115,743.95 

 
 

BONDOWNERS' RISKS 

Payment of Debt Service 
 
 The principal of, redemption premium, if any, and interest on the Series F Bonds are payable solely from 
the amounts paid by the Institution to the Authority under the Agreement.  No representation or assurance can be 
made that revenues will be realized by the Institution in the amounts necessary to make payments at the times and 
in the amounts sufficient to pay the debt service on the Series F Bonds. 
 
 Future revenues and expenses of the Institution will be affected by events and conditions relating 
generally to, among other things, demand for the Institution's educational services, the ability of the Institution to 
provide the required educational services, management capabilities, the Institution's ability to control expenses, 
competition, costs, legislation, governmental regulation and developments affecting the federal or state tax-
exempt status of non-profit organizations.  Unanticipated events and circumstances may occur which cause 
variations from the Institution's expectations. 
 
Enforceability of Lien on Tuition Receipts 
 
 The Agreement provides that the Institution shall make payments to the Trustee sufficient to pay the 
Bonds and the interest thereon as the same become due.  The obligation to make payments with respect to the 
Series C Bonds, the Series D Bonds, the Series E Bonds and the Series F Bonds and with respect to the Pool 
B/C Loan is secured by a security interest in the Tuition Receipts of the Institution granted to the Authority and 
assigned by the Authority to the Trustee.   
 
 In the event of bankruptcy of the Institution, transfers of property by the Institution, including the 
payment of debt or the transfer of any collateral, including receivables and Tuition Receipts, on or after the date 
which is 90 days (or, in some circumstances, one year) prior to the commencement of the case in bankruptcy 
court, may be subject to avoidance or recovery as preferential transfers.  Under certain circumstances a court may 
have the power to direct the use of Tuition Receipts to meet expenses of the Institution before paying the debt 
service on the Bonds. 
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Pursuant to the Massachusetts Uniform Commercial Code, the perfection of a security interest in the 
proceeds of the right to receive Tuition Receipts may cease if such proceeds are not paid over to the Trustee 
(or an agent for the Trustee) by the Institution under certain circumstances.  In addition, the lien on the right to 
receive Tuition Receipts may not extend to Tuition Receipts coming into existence after the commencement of 
a bankruptcy.  If any required payment is not made when due, the Institution must transfer or pay over 
immediately to the Trustee any Tuition Receipts with respect to which the security interest remains perfected 
pursuant to law.  Any Tuition Receipts thereafter received shall upon receipt by the Institution be transferred to 
the Trustee without such Tuition Receipts being commingled with other funds, in the form received (with 
necessary endorsements) up to an amount equal to the amount of the missed payment. 
 

The value of the security interest in the Tuition Receipts could be diluted by the issuance of additional 
Bonds or the incurrence of Additional Indebtedness secured on a parity with the Series C Bonds, the Series D 
Bonds, the Pool B/C Loan, the Series E Bonds and the Series F Bonds as to the security interest in the Tuition 
Receipts.  See “ADDITIONAL INDEBTEDNESS ON A PARITY WITH THE SERIES F BONDS” herein and 
Appendix C-2 -- “SUMMARY OF THE AGREEMENT” under the heading “Additional Indebtedness.”  In the 
event of the liquidation or bankruptcy of the Institution, there can be no assurance that the proceeds of the 
Institution’s Tuition Receipts will be adequate to pay debt service on the Bonds, including the Series F Bonds, 
and the Pool B/C Loan and any Additional Indebtedness.  No other property of the Institution has been pledged as 
security for the Bonds.  See “SOURCES OF PAYMENT AND SECURITY FOR THE SERIES F BONDS” 
herein. 
 
Enforceability of Remedies Generally 
 
 The remedies granted to the Trustee or the owners of the Series F Bonds upon an event of default under 
the Agreement may be dependent upon judicial actions which are often subject to discretion and delay.  Under 
existing law, the remedies specified in the Agreement may not be readily available or may be limited.  The 
various legal opinions to be delivered concurrently with the delivery of the Series F Bonds will be qualified as to 
the enforceability of the provisions of the Agreement by limitations imposed by state and federal laws, rulings 
and decisions affecting equitable remedies regardless of whether enforceability is sought in a proceeding at law or 
in equity and by bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency, receivership or other similar laws affecting the rights of 
creditors generally. 
 

The Bond Insurer’s obligation under the Bond Insurance Policy is a general obligation of the Bond 
Insurer and will not be guaranteed or secured, in whole or in part, by the United States of America or any agency 
or instrumentality thereof.  Default by the Bond Insurer may result in insufficient funds being available to pay the 
principal of and interest on the Series F Bonds.  In such event, the remedies available to the Trustee may be 
limited by, among other things, certain risks related to bankruptcy proceedings, and may also have been altered 
prior to a default by the Bond Insurer, which has the right, acting with the Institution and the Trustee, without 
Bondowner consent, to amend the provisions of the Agreement governing defaults and remedies.  The Bond 
Insurance Policy does not insure the payment of redemption premiums. 
 
No Redemption Upon Loss of Tax Exemption 
 
 As described under “TAX EXEMPTION” herein, non-compliance with certain requirements of the 
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, could cause interest on the Series F Bonds to be included in gross 
income for federal income tax purposes, retroactive to the date of issuance of the Series F Bonds.  The Series F 
Bonds are not required to be redeemed and are not subject to acceleration, and the interest rates on the Series F 
Bonds will not be changed, in the event interest thereon is determined to be includable in gross income for federal 
income tax purposes.  No provision has been made to compensate Bondowners for federal income taxes, interest 
and/or penalties which may be assessed in connection with any such tax liability or such determination or for any 
other loss or any diminution of gain which may occur. 
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE 

 The Authority has determined that no financial or operating data concerning the Authority is material to 
any decision to purchase, hold or sell the Series F Bonds and the Authority will not provide any such information.  
The Institution has undertaken responsibility for any continuing disclosure to Bondowners as described below, 
and the Authority shall have no liability to the Bondowners or any other person with respect to such disclosures. 
 
 The Institution has covenanted for the benefit of Bondowners to provide certain financial information 
and operating data relating to the Institution by not later than 195 days following the end of the Institution's fiscal 
year beginning with the fiscal year ending June 30, 2003 (the “Annual Report”), and to provide notices of the 
occurrence of certain enumerated events, if deemed by the Institution to be material.  The Annual Report will be 
filed on behalf of the Institution with each Nationally Recognized Municipal Securities Information Repository 
and with the appropriate State Repository if such repository is established.  The notices of material events will be 
filed on behalf of the Institution with the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board and the appropriate State 
Repository, if such reporting is established.  The specific nature of the information to be contained in the Annual 
Report and the notices of material events is summarized in APPENDIX E -- “FORM OF CONTINUING 
DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT.”  These covenants have been made in order to assist the Underwriter in 
complying with Rule 15c2-12 promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission. 
 
 The Institution is subject to continuing disclosure requirements under existing continuing disclosure 
agreements.  The Institution has previously complied with such filing requirements.  
 

TAX EXEMPTION 

In the opinion of Palmer & Dodge LLP, Bond Counsel to the Authority (“Bond Counsel”), based upon 
an analysis of existing laws, regulations, rulings, and court decisions, and assuming, among other matters, 
compliance with certain covenants, interest on the Series F Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal 
income tax purposes under Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the “Code”).  Bond Counsel is 
of the further opinion that interest on the Series F Bonds is not a specific preference item for purposes of the 
federal individual or corporate alternative minimum taxes, although Bond Counsel observes that such interest 
is included in adjusted current earnings when calculating corporate alternative minimum taxable income. 

 
Bond Counsel is also of the opinion that, under existing law, interest on the Series F Bonds and any 

profit on the sale of the Series F Bonds are exempt from Massachusetts personal income taxes and that the 
Series F Bonds are exempt from Massachusetts personal property taxes. Bond Counsel has not opined as to 
other Massachusetts tax consequences arising with respect to the Series F Bonds.  Prospective Bondowners 
should be aware, however, that the Series F Bonds are included in the measure of Massachusetts estate and 
inheritance taxes, and the Series F Bonds and the interest thereon are included in the measure of certain 
Massachusetts corporate excise and franchise taxes.  Bond Counsel has not opined as to the taxability of the 
Series F Bonds or the income therefrom under the laws of any state other than Massachusetts.  A complete 
copy of the proposed form of opinion of Bond Counsel is set forth in Appendix D hereto. 

 
To the extent the issue price of any maturity of the Series F Bonds is less than the amount to be paid at 

maturity of such Bonds (excluding amounts stated to be interest and payable at least annually over the term of 
such Bonds), the difference constitutes “original issue discount,” the accrual of which, to the extent properly 
allocable to each owner thereof, is treated as interest on the Series F Bonds which is excluded from gross 
income for federal income tax purposes and is exempt from Massachusetts personal income taxes.  For this 
purpose, the issue price of a particular maturity of the Series F Bonds is the first price at which a substantial 
amount of such maturity of the Series F Bonds is sold to the public (excluding bond houses, brokers, or similar 
persons or organizations acting in the capacity of underwriters, placement agents or wholesalers).  The original 
issue discount with respect to any maturity of the Series F Bonds accrues daily over the term to maturity of 
such Bonds on the basis of a constant interest rate compounded semiannually (with straight-line interpolations 
between compounding dates).  The accruing original issue discount is added to the adjusted basis of such 
Bonds to determine taxable gain or loss upon disposition (including sale, redemption, or payment on maturity) 
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of such Bonds.  Bondowners should consult their own tax advisors with respect to the tax consequences of 
ownership of Bonds with original issue discount, including the treatment of purchasers who do not purchase 
such Bonds in the original offering to the public at the first price at which a substantial amount of such Bonds 
is sold to the public. 

 
The Code imposes various restrictions, conditions and requirements relating to the exclusion from 

gross income for federal income tax purposes of interest on obligations such as the Series F Bonds.  The 
Authority and the Institution have covenanted to comply with certain restrictions designed to ensure that 
interest on the Series F Bonds will not be included in federal gross income.  Failure to comply with these 
covenants may result in interest on the Series F Bonds being included in gross income for federal income tax 
purposes, possibly from the date of original issuance of the Series F Bonds.  The opinion of Bond Counsel 
assumes compliance with these covenants.  Certain requirements and procedures contained or referred to in the 
Agreement, and other relevant documents may be changed and certain actions (including, without limitation, 
defeasance of the Series F Bonds) may be taken or omitted under the circumstances and subject to the terms 
and conditions set forth in such documents.  Bond Counsel has not undertaken to determine (or to inform any 
person) whether any actions taken (or not taken) or events occurring (or not occurring) after the date of 
issuance of the Series F Bonds may adversely affect the value of, or the tax status of interest on, the Series F 
Bonds.  Further, no assurance can be given that pending or future legislation, including amendments to the 
Code, if enacted into law, or any proposed legislation, including amendments to the Code, or any regulatory or 
administrative development with respect to existing law, will not adversely affect the value of, or the tax status 
of interest on, the Series F Bonds.  Prospective Bondowners are urged to consult their own tax advisors with 
respect to proposals to restructure the federal income tax. 

 
Although Bond Counsel is of the opinion that interest on the Series F Bonds is excluded from gross 

income for federal income tax purposes and is exempt from Massachusetts personal income taxes, the 
ownership or disposition of, or the accrual or receipt of interest on, the Series F Bonds may otherwise affect a 
Bondowner’s federal or state tax liability.  The nature and extent of these other tax consequences will depend 
upon the particular tax status of the Bondowner or the Bondowner’s other items of income or deduction.  Bond 
Counsel expresses no opinion regarding any such other tax consequences, and Bondowners should consult 
with their own tax advisors with respect to such consequences. 
 

LEGALITY OF THE SERIES F BONDS FOR INVESTMENT AND DEPOSIT 

 The Act provides that the Series F Bonds are securities in which all public officers and public bodies of 
the Commonwealth and its political subdivisions, all Massachusetts insurance companies, trust companies, 
savings banks, cooperative banks, banking associations, investment companies, executors, administrators, 
trustees and other fiduciaries may properly and legally invest funds, including capital in their control or belonging 
to them.  The Series F Bonds, under the Act, are securities which may properly and legally be deposited with and 
received by any Commonwealth or municipal officer or any agency or political subdivision of the 
Commonwealth for any purpose for which the deposit of bonds or obligations of the Commonwealth is now or 
may hereafter be authorized by law. 

DESCRIPTION OF RATINGS 

Moody's Investors Service, Inc. (“Moody's”) and Standard & Poor's Ratings Group (“S&P”) are 
expected to assign their municipal bond ratings of “Aaa” and “AAA,” respectively, to the Series F Bonds with the 
understanding that upon delivery of the Series F Bonds, a policy insuring the payment when due of the principal 
of and interest on the Series F Bonds will be issued by the Bond Insurer.  In addition, Moody's and S&P have 
assigned their underlying municipal bond ratings of “A3” and “A-”, respectively, to the Series F Bonds based 
solely on the Institution and without regard to the Bond Insurance Policy. 
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A credit rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities.  There is no assurance that the ratings will 
continue for any given period of time or that they might not be revised downward or withdrawn entirely by the 
rating agencies, if in their judgment circumstances so warrant.  Any such downward revision or withdrawal of the 
ratings might have an adverse effect on the market price of the Series F Bonds. 
 

COMMONWEALTH NOT LIABLE ON THE SERIES F BONDS 

 The Series F Bonds shall not be deemed to constitute a debt or liability of the Commonwealth or any 
political subdivision thereof, or a pledge of the faith and credit of the Commonwealth or any such political 
subdivision, but shall be payable solely from the Revenues derived by the Authority under the Agreement.  
Neither the faith and credit nor the taxing power of the Commonwealth or of any political subdivision thereof is 
pledged to the payment of the principal of or the interest on the Series F Bonds.  The Act does not in any way 
create a so-called moral obligation of the Commonwealth or of any political subdivision thereof to pay debt 
service on the Series F Bonds in the event of default by the Institution.  The Authority does not have taxing 
power. 
 

UNDERWRITING 

 The Series F Bonds are being purchased for reoffering by the Underwriter listed on the cover hereof (the 
“Underwriter”).  The Underwriter has agreed to purchase the Series F Bonds at an aggregate discount of 
$219,875.21 from the public offering price set forth on the cover page hereof.  The Underwriter has agreed to 
accept delivery and pay for all of the Series F Bonds if any are delivered.  The obligations of the Underwriter are 
subject to certain terms and conditions set forth in the purchase contract.  The Institution has agreed to indemnify 
the Underwriter and the Authority against certain liabilities, including certain liabilities arising under federal and 
state securities laws.  The Underwriter may allow concessions from the public offering price to certain dealers, 
banks and others.  After the initial public offering at the offering price or prices set forth on the cover of this 
Official Statement, the public offering price or prices may be varied from time to time by the Underwriter. 

LEGAL MATTERS 

 All legal matters incidental to the authorization and issuance of the Series F Bonds by the Authority are 
subject to the approval of Palmer & Dodge LLP, Boston, Massachusetts, Bond Counsel, whose opinion 
approving the validity and tax exempt status of the Series F Bonds will be delivered with the Series F Bonds.  A 
copy of the proposed form of the opinion of Bond Counsel is attached hereto as Appendix D.  Certain legal 
matters will be passed on for the Institution by its counsel, Goodwin Procter LLP, Boston, Massachusetts.  
Certain legal matters will be passed on for the Underwriter by its counsel, Mintz, Levin, Cohn, Ferris, Glovsky 
and Popeo, P.C., Boston, Massachusetts. 
 
 No litigation is pending to restrain or enjoin the issuance or delivery of the Series F Bonds or which 
questions or affects the validity of the Series F Bonds or the proceedings and authority under which they are to be 
issued.  Neither the creation, organization, or existence of the Authority, nor the title of the present members or 
other officers of the Authority to their respective offices is being contested.  See Appendix A -- “LETTER FROM 
THE INSTITUTION” with respect to any material litigation affecting the Institution. 
 

MISCELLANEOUS 

 The references to the Act, the Agreement and the Bond Insurance Policy are brief summaries of certain 
provisions thereof.  Such summaries do not purport to be complete, and reference is made to the complete 
documents for full and complete statements of such provisions.  The agreements of the Authority with the holders 
of the Series F Bonds are fully set forth in the Agreement, and neither any advertisement of the Series F Bonds 
nor this Official Statement is to be construed as constituting an agreement with the Bondowners.  So far as any 
statements are made in this Official Statement involving matters of opinion, whether or not expressly so stated, 
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they are intended merely as such and not as representations of fact.  Copies of the documents mentioned in this 
paragraph are on file at the offices of the Authority and of the Trustee. 
 
 Information relating to DTC and the book-entry system described herein under the heading “The 
SERIES F BONDS -- Book-Entry-Only System” is based on information furnished by DTC and is believed to be 
reliable, and information relating to the Bond Insurer and the Bond Insurance Policy contained herein under the 
heading “BOND INSURANCE” and in Appendix F hereto has been furnished by the Bond Insurer and is 
believed to be reliable, but none of the Authority, the Institution or the Underwriter make any representations or 
warranties whatsoever with respect to such information. 
 
 Attached hereto as Appendix A is a letter from the Institution to the Authority which contains certain 
information relating to the Institution.  While the information contained therein is believed to be reliable, the 
Authority and, except as indicated on the inside cover hereof, the Underwriter make no representations or 
warranties whatsoever with respect to the information contained therein.  Appendix B contains the audited 
financial statements of the Institution together with the report of its independent auditors, Deloitte & Touche 
LLP. 
 
 The Authority and the Underwriter have relied on the information contained in Appendix A -- “LETTER 
FROM THE INSTITUTION” and the financial statements contained in Appendix B -- “FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS OF THE INSTITUTION.”   
 
 Appendix C-1 -- “DEFINITIONS OF CERTAIN TERMS,” Appendix C-2 -- “SUMMARY OF THE 
AGREEMENT,” Appendix D -- “PROPOSED FORM OF BOND COUNSEL OPINION” and Appendix E -- 
“FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT” have been prepared by Palmer & Dodge LLP, 
Bond Counsel to the Authority. 
 
 Appendix F - “SPECIMEN BOND INSURANCE POLICY” has been supplied by the Bond Insurer. 
 
 All appendices are incorporated as an integral part of this Official Statement. 
 
 The Institution has reviewed the portions of this Official Statement describing the Institution, the Project, 
Estimated Sources and Uses of Funds, Bondowners’ Risks and Continuing Disclosure (as it relates to the 
Institution), and has furnished Appendix A -- “LETTER FROM THE INSTITUTION” and Appendix B -- 
“FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE INSTITUTION” to this Official Statement, and has approved all such 
information for use with this Official Statement.  At the closing, the Institution will certify that such portions of 
this Official Statement, except for any projections and opinions contained in such portions, do not contain an 
untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary in order to make the statements made 
therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they are made, not misleading. 
 
 The execution and delivery of this Official Statement by its Executive Director has been duly authorized 
by the Authority. 
 
 MASSACHUSETTS HEALTH AND EDUCATIONAL 
   FACILITIES AUTHORITY 
 
 
 By: /s/ Benson T. Caswell 
  Executive Director 
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April 16, 2003 

Massachusetts Health and 
Educational Facilities Authority 
99 Summer Street - Suite 1000 
Boston, MA 02110-1240 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

We are pleased to present the following information about Simmons College (“Simmons” or 
the “College”).  We submit this letter and the information contained herein to the 
Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities Authority (the “Authority”) for inclusion 
in its Official Statement relating to its Revenue Bonds, Simmons College Issue, Series F 
(the “Series F Bonds”). 

BACKGROUND AND HISTORY

Simmons College, a private, nonsectarian institution located in Boston's Fenway Area, 
currently serves 1,460 undergraduate women and 2,407 men and women in five graduate 
programs at the master and doctoral levels.  Simmons was one of the first colleges in the 
nation devoted to the education of women for professional studies.  Since 1899, when the 
College was founded, Simmons has prepared women to "earn an independent livelihood."  
This mission combines a liberal arts curriculum with attention to practical skills, thus 
allowing students to be successful practitioners, leaders in their professional fields, and 
active citizens. 

The undergraduate curriculum is distinguished by its flexibility, focus on individual 
responsibility, and connection to the real world.  The College offers a distinctive 
undergraduate program that links the challenges of academic study to the world of work.  
Students may major in a single discipline or professional field, or may combine majors that 
blend components of academic and pre-professional fields.  Students may also choose from 
a variety of double major options.  A special feature of the undergraduate program is the 
Dorothea Lynde Dix Scholars Program, designed for women who are beyond the age of 
traditional college students.  Simmons welcomes the mature learner to the College and 
values the life experience that a diverse student population creates.  Dix Scholars 
constitute about 18% of total undergraduate enrollment. 
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Much like the undergraduate program, the graduate schools celebrate a rich history of 
excellence in their curricula. 

The School of Social Work, which offers both master of social work and doctor of philosophy 
degree programs, was the first academically affiliated school of social work in the nation. 

The Graduate School of Library and Information Science, ranks among the nation's top 
library science programs and offers master of science degree programs in library science 
and archives management, as well as an advanced program leading to the doctor of arts 
degree.  It awards more master’s degrees each year than any other similar school in the 
country.  In the Fall of 2001, the School began offering its master’s degree in library science 
at Mount Holyoke College, located in western Massachusetts.  Simmons faculty teach the 
courses, and Simmons awards the degree. 

The School of Management, founded in 1974, is the only master of business administration 
program in the country whose curriculum is specifically designed to address the concerns of 
women in business.  The School of Management’s annual Leadership Conference, which 
has received major corporate sponsorship from companies such as JPMorganChase, 
Johnson & Johnson, and Hewlett-Packard, was labeled “one of the top conferences for your 
money” by Working Women magazine.   

The School for Health Studies, which offers the College's programs in health 
administration, nursing, nutrition, and physical therapy, credits its large enrollments to 
the high quality of its programs and the increased national demand for highly trained 
health care providers.  The School for Health Studies was the first in the nation to offer a 
public health nursing program.  The School for Health Studies is the only school in the 
Northeast region offering a certificate program in sports nutrition.  The School for Health 
Studies has two joint degree programs with the Harvard School of Public Health (i.e., 
Maternal and Child Health and Occupational Health).  In these dual degree programs, the 
student earns an MSN (nursing) degree at Simmons and an M.S. or M.P.H. at the Harvard 
School of Public Health. 

Through its College of Arts & Sciences and Professional Studies, Simmons also offers co-
educational graduate programs in areas such as special education, teacher preparation, 
communications management, English, French, Spanish, and liberal arts studies. 

Simmons is an urban institution, deeply involved in the City of Boston, with programs that 
encourage partnerships between the College and the city.  Boston represents an important 
learning environment for Simmons students by providing a critical arena for professional 
preparation.  The undergraduate college as well as Simmons’s graduate schools have a long 
tradition of leveraging real world experience garnered from Boston-based internships, 
fieldwork, and service learning. 
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STRATEGIC DIRECTION

The Simmons Strategic Plan 2002 (the “Strategic Plan”), an update of a 1999 plan, was 
approved by the Board of Trustees on January 25, 2002.  The Strategic Plan articulates 
goals and initiatives for the entire institution.  In addition, it includes specific operational 
plans for each school and the Office of Student Life.  Deans regularly prepare updates on 
every action item in the plan, and they also provide progress reports to the Board of 
Trustees three times a year.  The Strategic Plan articulates the primary strategic direction 
for the College: Simmons will be known for educating students for the professions and 
preparing them for leadership through programs of academic excellence, distinguished by a 
commitment to women and diversity. 

Strategic planning has proven instrumental in driving success at Simmons.  Enrollments 
across the schools increased 4.3% for the 2001-02 academic year and increased another 
12.4% in the Fall 2002 semester.  The operating results for 2002 were the strongest ever, 
for both revenues and operating income.  Total operating revenues increased 7.3% from the 
prior year, and net operating income reached a record of $2.9 million, exceeding the 
previous year by more than $500,000. 

Priorities

Developing Expertise 

Simmons is continuing to ensure academic excellence through: 

• Supporting the scholarly and professional activity of faculty, focusing on 
innovative teaching, research, and knowledge dissemination in the targeted 
areas of the College’s educational mission--women, the professions, leadership, 
and diversity. 

• Evaluating teaching and learning outcomes, and incorporating this information 
into regular reviews of the curriculum to insure relevance and quality. 

• Effectively utilizing technology for teaching and learning, including 
implementing discipline-specific competencies, to promote interactive learning 
and to give graduates a competitive edge in the workplace.
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Increasing the Diversity of the Curriculum and Community 

Simmons is preparing students to work with differing ideas and people as a critical 
leadership competency by: 

• Increasing the diversity of faculty, staff, and students. 

• Broadening the coverage of global and multicultural issues in the curriculum 
and co-curriculum. 

• Encouraging exploration of issues related to diversity in scholarly efforts and 
public partnerships. 

Expanding Market Awareness 

Simmons is ensuring that its strengths--being women-centered, preparing students for 
the professions, developing leaders, and embracing diversity--are recognized locally and 
nationally through: 

• Launching a college-wide brand development initiative, led by the recently 
created position of Vice President for Marketing, aimed at enabling Simmons to 
market itself with unified and market-sensitive messages. 

• Investing in website improvements to increase admissions.  Additional ongoing 
investments include search engine optimization, which has increased search 
referrals to the Simmons website by 200% in eight months. 

• Cultivating strategic partnerships with corporations and professional 
associations to secure sponsorship, deliver programs, conduct research, and 
collaborate on such events as the annual Women Student Leaders Conference. 

• Increasing publishing and presentations on women, education for the 
professions, leadership, and diversity. 
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Highlights of the Plan 

• The undergraduate college is bolstering its science and technology programs for 
women, beginning with the launch of an Information Technology major and the 
implementation of a Materials Science program in collaboration with Cornell 
University, which is funded by a $430,000 grant from the National Science 
Foundation. 

• The School of Health Studies is establishing itself as an authority on women’s 
health by hosting an annual conference, providing professional education 
courses, and increasing publications. 

• The School of Social Work is increasing its recognition as an authority on 
domestic violence and multicultural practice through courses, events, and 
partnerships.  Of particular note are the Urban Leadership Program and the 
Hebrew College Certificate Program in Jewish Communal and Clinical Social 
Work. 

• The Graduate School of Library and Information Science is expanding its reach 
through building on the extraordinary success of its off-site program at Mount 
Holyoke College in western Massachusetts.  One such program includes The 
Vietnamese Scholar Librarian Program, a program that brings Vietnamese 
librarians to Simmons to study for the master’s Degree in Library and 
Information Science, and is funded by the Luce and Starr Foundations and the 
Harvard-Yenching Institute. 

[REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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CURRICULA AND DEGREES AWARDED

Undergraduate

In the undergraduate programs, Simmons provides its students with a liberal arts 
education in a wide range of academic and professional areas.  The College awards the 
Bachelor of Arts degree in Afro-American studies, art and music, communications, East 
Asian studies, economics, education, English, foreign languages, history, human services, 
international relations, management, philosophy, political science, psychology, retailing, 
sociology and women’s studies.  Simmons also awards the Bachelor of Science degree in 
biochemistry, biology, chemistry, computer science, environmental science, information 
technology, mathematics, nursing, nutrition, psychobiology and health sciences for physical 
therapy.  Students may combine any of these fields of study in a minor or double major. 

Graduate

Simmons offers the following graduate degree programs: the Master of Science in 
communications management, general education, health administration, library and 
information science, nursing, nutrition, physical therapy, and special education; the 
Master of Arts in children's literature, English, English as a second language, French, 
gender and cultural studies, liberal studies, Spanish, and teaching; the Master of Business 
Administration; the Master of Social Work; the Doctor of Physical Therapy; the Doctor of 
Arts in library and information science; and the Doctor of Philosophy in social work.  There 
are also certificate programs in communications, education, health administration, 
management, nursing, nutrition, and urban leadership for those who have completed the 
bachelor's degree. 

Joint Degrees

The College has a joint degree program in cooperation with the Massachusetts College of 
Pharmacy and Allied Health Sciences, whereby qualified students earn, in a five-year 
period, degrees in both chemistry and pharmacy and a double degree in biology and 
physician assistant studies.  Simmons also offers student exchange programs with 
American University in Washington, D.C.; Mills College in Oakland, California; Spelman 
College in Atlanta, Georgia; and Fisk University in Nashville, Tennessee.  Foreign study 
opportunities are available for qualified students through approved study abroad 
programs. 
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ACCREDITATION AND MEMBERSHIPS

Simmons is accredited, or certain programs are approved, by the following educational and 
professional associations: the New England Association of Schools and Colleges, the 
American Association of Schools and Colleges, the American Chemical Society, the 
American Library Association, the American Physical Therapy Association, the Council on 
Social Work Education, the American Dietetic Association, the National League for 
Nursing, and both the Department of Education and the Interstate Certification Compact 
of The Commonwealth of Massachusetts.  The School of Management is in candidacy for 
accreditation from the Association of Advanced College Schools of Business (AACSB). 

The College is a member of many educational associations, including the American Council 
on Education, the Association of Independent Colleges and Universities of Massachusetts, 
the National Association of College and University Business Officers, the Council for the 
Advancement and Support of Education, and the Women's College Coalition.  Simmons is a 
participant in the New England Colleges Fund, whose 28 members benefit from a 
cooperative effort to raise financial support from regional and national corporations. 

RELATIONSHIPS WITH OTHER INSTITUTIONS

The College partners with a number of cultural and academic institutions that enrich its 
academic offerings.  Academic collaborations allow Simmons’s students to take courses for 
credit at the New England Conservatory of Music, Hebrew College, and the Colleges of the 
Fenway. 

The Domestic Exchange Program gives Simmons students the opportunity to spend one or 
two semesters of their sophomore or junior years at Mills College, Spelman College, Fisk 
University, Washington University and American University.

Cornell University and Simmons have a joint research and curriculum development project 
on Women in Materials Sciences, funded by the National Science Foundation.  Harvard 
University and Simmons offer joint graduate programs in Occupational Health Nursing 
and Maternal and Child Nursing.

The Simmons College Library is one of a thirteen-member consortium of academic libraries 
in the Boston area, and Simmons students enjoy privileges at all of the member libraries.
Some Simmons departments conduct portions of their academic work in neighboring 
institutions such as Children's Hospital Medical Center, Beth Israel-Deaconess Medical 
Center, Massachusetts General Hospital, Dana-Farber Cancer Institute, and Brigham and 
Women's Hospital.  As the College's internship and fieldwork requirements have expanded 
over the years, close ties have been established with welfare agencies, cultural institutions, 
state and local government offices, and business and financial organizations in the Boston 
area--especially banks, insurance companies, publishing houses and retail establishments. 
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COLLEGES OF THE FENWAY

In March of 1996, Simmons College, Emmanuel College, Massachusetts College of 
Pharmacy and Allied Health Sciences, Wentworth Institute of Technology, and Wheelock 
College launched the Colleges of the Fenway initiative.  In July 1999, Massachusetts 
College of Art, a public institution, became its sixth member.  The major goal of the 
Colleges of the Fenway is to provide opportunity for shared academic, social, and 
administrative collaboration while, at the same time, preserving the unique character and 
independence of each of the six participating institutions.  The collaboration has the 
following purposes: 

• To provide students and faculty with more academic and co-curricular choices 
than any single institution can provide by itself, at no additional cost; 

• To lower the rate of increase in costs, or achieve substantial reductions in costs, 
through collaboration on joint academic or administrative services; and 

• Ultimately, to increase student demand for the institutions by offering greater 
academic choices and value while reducing overall costs. 

Representatives of each institution’s Board of Trustees meet semi-annually to exchange 
ideas and monitor the progress of the collaborative.  Achievements include: 

• Academic calendars have been realigned so students can cross-register easily to 
take courses on different campuses at no additional cost.  During the 2002-2003 
academic year, 128 College of the Fenway students have cross-enrolled. 

• Collaborative purchase of property, liability, and student health insurance has 
reduced premiums significantly. 

• Academic collaboration among faculty has resulted in the sharing of 
instructional materials and resources among departments. 

• The Davis Educational Foundation has provided financial support for a faculty 
grant program to foster new models of pedagogy through collaboration. 

• Student life offices have worked together on joint orientation week activities, 
social events, and intramural programs.  In addition, they provide access to the 
programs and workshops each college offers. 

A number of administrative and student services are currently being examined for 
improvements in cost and/or effectiveness through collaboration or joint bidding.
Information technology is the largest area for potential pooling of resources. 
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GOVERNANCE

Trustees

The governing organization of Simmons College is the Board of Trustees (the “Board”), a 
self-perpetuating board, consisting of not more than 34 members, excluding Emeritus 
Trustees and including the President of the College.  Up to eight members, elected upon 
nomination of the alumnae/i associations, serve for one term of five years.  Other members 
of the Board may serve for two consecutive five-year terms.  The members of the 
Corporation, which include all Trustees and a limited number of Corporators, are 
empowered to elect the Corporators and the Board of Trustees at their annual meeting. 

The Board of Trustees meets in October, January, and May (its annual meeting).  The 
Corporators meet annually in May for the purpose of electing Trustees and Corporators.  In 
between meetings of the Board, the Executive Committee has the full powers and authority 
of the Board except to sell real estate and confer degrees.  The Executive Committee 
normally meets four times each year and at other times, as necessary. 

Current Members of the Board of Trustees, their term expiration, and their business or 
professional affiliation are as follows: 

Member Term Expires Professional Affiliation
Charles S. Boit (2)(3) 2004 Advisory Managing Director 
Jamaica Plain, MA  Scudder Kemper Investments, Inc. 
   Boston, MA 

Robert E. Branson 2006 Vice President & General Counsel 
Bloomfield, CT  ALTV 
   Washington, DC 

Lauren J. Brisky (3) 2005 Vice Chancellor for Administration 
Nashville, TN  & Chief Financial Officer 
   Vanderbilt University 
   Nashville, TN 

Anne Lincoln Bryant (1)(3) 2007 Executive Director 
Arlington, VA  National School Boards Association 
   Alexandria, VA 

(1) Chair of the Board of Trustees and of the Executive Committee 
(2) Clerk 
(3) Member of the Executive Committee 
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Member Term Expires Professional Affiliation
Daniel S. Cheever, Jr. (3)  President 
Brookline, MA  Simmons College 
   Boston, MA 

Sarah Molloy Crane (3) 2005 Civic Leader 
Brooklyn, NY   

Dolores D’Angelo 2007 Coordinator of Communication 
Bethesda, MD  Arts Program 
   Montgomery Blair High School 
   Silver Spring, MD 

Miriam Drake 2004 Professor Emerita 
Atlanta, GA  Georgia Institute of Technology 
   Atlanta, GA 

Eileen M. Friars (3) 2006 Past President 
Charlotte, NC  Consumer Credit Card Services 
   Bank of America  
   Charlotte, NC 

Barbara S. Graham (3) 2004 Associate Director, 
Cambridge, MA  University Library 
   Harvard University 
   Cambridge, MA 

Wendy A. Gutterson 2005 Executive Director 
Needham, MA  Cambridge Health Alliance 
   Cambridge, MA 

Anne C. Hodsdon (3) 2003 Past President 
Rye Beach, NH  John Hancock Investment Services 
   Boston, MA 

Roslyn Jaffe (3) 2003 Secretary of Corporation 
Stamford, CT  The Dress Barn 
   Suffern, NY 

(3) Member of the Executive Committee 
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Member Term Expires Professional Affiliation
Stephen P. McCandless 2006 Past Senior Vice President 
New York, NY  Personalized Media Communications 
   New York, NY 

Joseph C. McNay 2004 Principal & Chairman 
Chestnut Hill, MA  Essex Investment Management, Co. 
   Boston, MA 

Jacqueline C. Morby 2006 Managing Director 
Pittsburgh, PA  TA Associates 
   Boston, MA 

Jerome T. Murphy 2006 Professor, School of Education 
Cambridge, MA  Harvard University 
   Cambridge, MA 

Linda Kotzen Paresky (3) 2004 Private Investor 
Fisher Island, FL   

Kevin C. Phelan 2007 Executive Vice President 
Wellesley, MA  Meredith & Grew, Inc. 
   Boston, MA 

Regina M. Pisa (4) 2004 Managing Partner 
Chestnut Hill, MA  Goodwin Procter LLP 
   Boston, MA 

Emily Scott Pottruck 2004 Pottruck Scott Family Foundation 
San Francisco, CA  San Francisco, CA 

Lucia Luce Quinn (3) 2006 Vice President,  
Chatham, NJ  Developing Businesses 
   Quest Diagnostics, Inc. 
   Teterboro, NJ 

Jo-Ann Robotti (3) 2003 Senior Vice President, Marketing 
Shelter Island Heights, NY  MediMOM 
   New York, NY 

(3) Member of the Executive Committee 
(4) Goodwin Procter LLP serves as counsel to the College on various matters, including with 

respect to the issuance of the Series F Bonds. 
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Member Term Expires Professional Affiliation
Douglas R. Smith-Petersen 2005 President and CEO 
Dover, MA  Fiduciary Trust Company 
   Boston, MA  

Paula A. Sneed 2006 Group Vice President 
Lake Bluff, IL  President, E-Commerce and  
   Marketing Service 
   Kraft Foods North America 
   Northfield, IL 

Rebecca Miller Sykes 2003 Associate Head of School 
Andover, MA  Phillips Academy 
   Andover, MA 

Janet Trafton Tobin 2003 Civic Volunteer and Philanthropist 
Lincoln, MA 

Joan M. Warburg (3) 2003 President 
Greenwich, CT  Bydale Foundation 
   Greenwich, CT 

Ann J. Wolpert (3) 2004 Director of Libraries 
Cambridge, MA  Massachusetts Institute of 

  Technology 
   Cambridge, MA 

Carol Woolf 2007 Principal Consultant 
Lexington, MA  C.S. Woolf and Associates 
   Lexington, MA 

Emeritus
Bruce Harriman Ernest Monrad Herbert E. Tucker 
Salem, MA Weston, MA Oak Bluffs, MA 

Franklin K. Hoyt Arthur Perry 
Duxbury, MA Concord, MA 

(3) Member of the Executive Committee 
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Administration

The President of the College is charged with its administration.  Assisting the President in 
this task are the officers of the College, who include the Senior Vice President for 
Administration & Planning, Vice President for Finance & Treasurer, Vice President for 
Institutional Advancement, Vice President for Marketing, Deans of the College of Arts and 
Sciences and Professional Studies, the School for Health Studies, the Graduate School of 
Library and Information Science, the School of Management, the School of Social Work, of 
Student Life, and the College Counsel. 

Daniel S. Cheever, Jr., 60, was inaugurated in 1996 as President of Simmons College.  In 
1995, Dr. Cheever was named Interim President following an eight-year tenure as 
president of Wheelock College and four years as president of American Student Assistance.  
He serves as a director of Fiduciary Trust Company and is a past trustee of Hurricane 
Island Outward Bound School, WGBH Foundation, Massachusetts General Hospital, the 
National Council of Higher Education Loan Programs, and the Children’s Discovery 
Museum, which he founded.  He is widely known for his views on the affordability of a 
college education and has written extensively on the need for long-term reform in 
American higher education.

Lisa Chapnick, 50, was appointed to the position of Senior Vice President for 
Administration & Planning in 1998.  Before coming to Simmons, she was the Executive 
Director of the City of Boston Inspectional Services.  She has also served as the Director of 
the City of Boston Public Facilities Department, Commissioner of the Traffic and Parking 
Department for the City of Boston, and as Deputy Associate Secretary of Economic Affairs 
for the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. 

Michèle V. Cloonan, 47, is Dean of the Graduate School of Library & Information 
Science.  Before coming to Simmons in September 2002, she was Associate Professor and 
Chair of the Department of Information Studies at UCLA.  Dr. Cloonan has published 
extensively in the areas of preservation and publishing history.  She has also served as a 
preservation consultant to a variety of cultural institutions. 

Humberto Ferreira Gonçalves, 52, joined Simmons in 1998 as Vice President for 
Finance & Treasurer.  For the previous 22 years, Mr. Gonç alves served in a variety of 
financial and administrative positions at Northeastern University: Budget Director, 
Interim Dean of Admissions, Dean of Administrative Services, Associate Dean for Planning 
and Administration, Director of Institutional Research and Director of Management 
Systems & Analysis.  Prior to Northeastern, he was an auditor at the public accounting 
firm of Arthur Young & Company.  He currently serves as Treasurer and Trustee of 
NEEIA Compensation Inc., a self-insured workers’ compensation group of Massachusetts 
schools, colleges and universities. 
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Maria LaTour Kadison, 40, became the Vice President for Marketing in 2001. 
Previously, she was senior vice president of marketing and marketing services at 
HomePortfolio, Inc. in Newton. As a senior analyst at Forrester Research, Inc. in 
Cambridge, she focused on online marketing and commerce. As vice president at Bozell 
Sawyer Miller’s international practice in Boston, she crafted communications strategies 
with multinational corporations and heads of state. She was the recipient of the Jess 
Morrow Johns Scholarship for Excellence in Marketing at Yale University School of 
Management and a Yale Fellow in the International Relations program. 

Gerald P. Koocher, 55, assumed the deanship of the School for Health Studies in June 
2001.  For the previous 30 years he served on the staff of Boston Children’s Hospital and 
the Judge Baker Children’s Center, as Chief of Psychology since 1988, and as Associate 
Professor in Psychiatry at Harvard Medical School.  He also directed the Linda Pollin 
Institute at Harvard Medical School and serves as the editor of the scholarly journal, 
Ethics & Behavior.  Dean Koocher serves as a Director and Treasurer of the American 
Psychological Association (1995-2004) and is the only psychologist in the U.S. to be board 
certified in four specialty areas. 

Sheila Murphy, 49, has served as Dean of Student Life since 1994.  Before coming to 
Simmons, Ms. Murphy held the title of dean or vice president for student affairs at Mount 
Ida College, Russell Sage College, Bradford College and Mount Holyoke College.  She is 
currently the elected Regional Vice President for Region I of NASPA, the country's largest 
student affairs professional association. 

Patricia O’Brien, 50, was appointed Dean of the School of Management in 1997.   Dean 
O’Brien taught at Harvard Business School for a decade, and in 1996 she joined the faculty 
of Babson College as holder of the Gillette Term Chair.  She has also served as a consultant 
to a number of the world’s leading corporations.   

Diane Raymond, 53, was appointed Dean of the College of Arts and Sciences and 
Professional Studies in January 2003.  Previously, she served for two years as Associate 
Dean and Director of Academic Advising.  She joined the Simmons faculty in 1985 and 
holds a joint appointment as Professor of Philosophy and Women’s Studies.

Joseph Regan, 62, was named Dean of the School of Social Work in 1990.  He joined the 
School of Social Work in 1977 as an assistant professor and was later promoted to the 
positions of Assistant and Associate Dean and Professor.  Dean Regan has served as 
Treasurer and member of the Steering Committee for the Group for the Advancement of 
Doctoral Education and was on the Board of Directors of Anchorage House.
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Kathleen Rogers 43, joined Simmons in January 2002 as College Counsel.  She came to 
Simmons from the Boston law firm of Yurko & Perry, PC (now Yurko & Salvesen), where 
she was a shareholder.  Prior to joining Yurko & Perry, she served as a litigator at 
Hutchins, Wheeler & Dittmar, and Widett, Slater & Goldman.  For more than a decade, 
Ms. Rogers has advised and represented numerous Boston area colleges and universities in 
litigation and risk management, particularly in cases involving disability and employment 
law issues.  She is a frequent speaker on these topics. 

Kristina Schaefer, 41, Vice President for Institutional Advancement, came to Simmons in 
1998 from Children’s Memorial Medical Center in Chicago where she was the Vice 
President for Development and Director of Foundation Operations.  Prior to joining 
Children’s, Ms. Schaefer was the Interim Director of Development for Rice University and 
the Campaign Director for its James A. Baker Institute for Public Policy.  Before Rice 
University, she was the Annual Fund Director at Texas Christian University. 

Faculty and Staff

Simmons currently has 176 full-time faculty and 227 part-time faculty.  Of the full-time 
faculty, approximately 78% hold doctoral or other postgraduate degrees.  In January 1999, 
the College implemented a three-year plan that increased the average faculty salaries to 
the 80th percentile of the national faculty salaries for comprehensive educational 
institutions, as reported annually by the American Association of University Professors.  
Simmons awards tenure to its most distinguished faculty after a thorough review both by 
peers and the College's administration.  Currently approximately 50% of the full-time 
faculty are tenured. 

In addition to its faculty, the College employs 323 full-time administrative, professional 
and support staff and approximately 36 part-time administrative staff. 

Union Relations

Currently, Simmons has only one labor union, Local 254 of the Service Employees 
International Union, which represents 13 maintenance employees.  The College considers 
its relationship with the union to be good.  The current four-year contract expires June 30, 
2003.  No other employees of the College are represented by labor unions or similar 
organizations for the purpose of collective bargaining.
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FACILITIES

The Simmons campus covers approximately 13 acres in Boston's Fenway area, close to 
many of the city's major cultural institutions such as the Museum of Fine Arts, The 
Isabella Stewart Gardner Museum, and Symphony Hall.  The Simmons campus has 24 
buildings, including nine residence halls, thirteen academic and administrative buildings, 
a dining hall, one health center, and one athletic complex.  The President’s house is located 
in nearby Brookline, Massachusetts. 

The main academic campus, approximately seven acres, consists of the central 
administrative and classroom building located at 300 The Fenway.  It includes a commons 
area with a cafeteria and meeting rooms; an art gallery and a language laboratory; Beatley 
Library, containing about 200,000 volumes and 1,095 periodical subscriptions; an 
instructional computing laboratory and classrooms; Lefavour Hall, a five-story building 
which includes the Communications Department and a specialized library containing more 
than 38,000 volumes and 570 periodical subscriptions that supports the Graduate School of 
Library and Information Science; and the four-story Park Science Center.  In August 2002, 
a new building that houses the Graduate School of Library and Information Science, the 
School of Social Work and the Office of Administrative and Academic Technology was 
opened.  This new building also includes an underground garage for 214 vehicles. 

The residence campus, two blocks from the main academic campus on Brookline Avenue, is 
approximately six acres and consists of nine residence halls, a dining hall, a health center 
and infirmary, and a multi-story 58,000 square foot Sports Center.  The Sports Center 
contains a competition-sized swimming pool, a gymnasium, a dance studio, a running 
track, and other sports facilities. 

In 1977, Garland Junior College, a well-known Boston institution for more than 100 years, 
terminated its operations and transferred seven buildings in the Back Bay to Simmons.  In 
return, Simmons agreed to maintain services to Garland's alumnae body and to perpetuate 
the founder's name, Mary Garland.  Located on this campus is the School of Management, 
with a library with 4,000 volumes and 84 periodical subscriptions. 

The College's main academic campus, its residence campus, and the classroom building on 
the Garland campus are in substantial compliance with federal regulations that require 
access for disabled persons.  Although the administrative buildings at the Garland campus 
and the buildings at the residence campus are not in full compliance, the College makes 
appropriate arrangements to accommodate persons with disabilities.  Simmons is 
committed to maintaining accessible campuses for its students, faculty, staff, and visitors 
and to enable members of the Simmons community with disabilities to fully participate in 
the life of the College. 



Appendix A  

A-17

FUTURE BUILDING PLANS – THE PROJECT

The College expects to spend the proceeds of the Series F Bonds in four major areas: 

(1) Redesign of the Library, including the addition of 15,000 square feet and electronic 
classrooms, renovation of the first and second floors, and an exterior design change. 

(2) Construction on the residence campus that includes renovating Arnold and Smith 
Halls, adding cosmetic upgrades to Mesick and Morse Halls, purchasing an emergency 
generator, upgrading Sports Center equipment, replacing dormitory room and lounge 
furniture, and other miscellaneous projects. 

(3) Further renovation of the Science Center, including upgrading the biology and 
chemistry laboratories, passenger elevator, and photography laboratory. 

(4) Further renovation of the main academic building.  This plan is expected to include 
replacing the heat recovery units and roof, remodeling the Conference Center, first floor, 
and basement, adding two new electronic classrooms, and other miscellaneous projects. 

STUDENT ENROLLMENTS

With the goal of becoming more competitive in the marketplace and in response to 
demographic changes, Simmons has chosen to become more selective with its admission 
policies.  In addition, Simmons plans to expand the size and breadth of its undergraduate 
and graduate programs. 

The College’s enrollment strategy has four primary goals: strengthening academic quality, 
broadening the geographic base, lowering the financial aid discount rate, and increasing 
diversity.   Extensive efforts have been and continue to be made to improve the quality of 
life for students by enhancing the quality of student and academic support services 
including housing, library facilities, athletics and athletic facilities, counseling, and, 
financial aid.  Simmons has invested significant resources in student recruitment activities 
in both the undergraduate and graduate areas. 

The following table shows the College's undergraduate and graduate headcount 
enrollments and the full-time equivalent student ("FTE") enrollments.  Undergraduate
FTEs for part-time students and graduate FTEs are calculated based on 12 credit hours 
per semester. 
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Undergraduate  Graduate  Overall 

Fall         Full Part  Full Part   Total 

Semester Time Time FTEs Time Time FTEs Total FTEs

 1998 1,055 307 1,126 660 1,531 1,507 3,553 2,633 
 1999 1,088 291 1,249 612 1,492 1,420 3,483 2,669 
 2000 1,084 221 1,204 652 1,464 1,451 3,421 2,655 
 2001 1,127 228 1,255 533 1,580 1,406 3,468 2,661  
  2002 1,239 221 1,305 644 1,763 1,624 3,867 2,929 

Headcount Enrollment by School – Fall 2002 

Enrollment Percent of Total
College of Arts & Sciences – Undergraduate 1,460 37.8% 
College of Arts & Sciences – Graduate 888 23.0% 
School for Health Studies 332 8.6% 
Graduate School of Library & Information Sciences 620 16.0% 
School of Management 203 5.2% 
School of Social Work 364 9.4% 
  -------- ---------- 
TOTAL 3,867 100.0%

Summer Session

During the summer, Simmons conducts two six-week sessions for undergraduate and 
graduate students.  In addition, the College has successfully conducted several specialized 
summer institutes serving professionals in various fields. 

Undergraduate Student Applications, Acceptances, and Matriculations

Currently, Simmons students come from 37 states and 29 countries.  In the class which 
entered in September 2002, 54% came from Massachusetts, 24% from other New England 
states, 19% from states outside New England, and 3% from foreign countries. 

The following table summarizes the key data regarding the College’s undergraduate 
recruiting activities for the last five years. 
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Freshman Applications, Acceptances and Matriculants

 Fall Fall Fall Fall Fall 
 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002
Applications 1,068 1,184 1,779 1,720 1,753 
Acceptances 781 849 1,165  1,193 1,231 
Acceptances as % of applications 73% 72% 65% 69% 70% 

Matriculants 270 271 265 303 328 
Matriculants as % of acceptances 35% 32% 23% 25% 27% 

Statistics for Freshman Matriculants:       

Average SAT score 1,069 1,077 1,117 1,106 1,096 

High school class rank (decile), 
percent of matriculants:       
 Top 10% 21% 23% 22% 20% 24% 
 Top 20% 45% 44% 45% 48% 47% 
 Top One Third 67% 67% 67% 66% 65% 

Transfer Applications, Acceptances and Matriculants (including Dix Scholars)

 Fall Fall Fall Fall Fall 
 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002
Applications   375 418 402 301 400 
Acceptances  222 258 275  193 273 
Acceptances as % of applications 59% 62% 68% 64% 68% 

Matriculants  133 124 166  117 180 
Matriculants as % of acceptances 60% 48% 60% 61% 66% 
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Tuition, Room and Board Rates

Tuition, and room and board rates for the last five academic years were as follows: 

Undergraduate Annual Tuition, Room & Board and Mandatory Fees

Academic Year 
 1998-99 1999-00 2000-01 2001-02 2002-03
Tuition $18,784 $19,520 $20,260 $21,020 $22,000  
Room & Board 7,590 8,046(1) 8,410(1) 8,750(1) 9,100(1)

Fees 598 614 630 648 668 
 ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ 
Total $26,972 $28,180 $29,300 $30,418 $31,768

(1) Includes an annual telephone fee of $180 that previously was paid directly by the student to the telephone 

company.

Graduate Tuition Per Credit Hour

Academic Year
  1998-99 1999-00 2000-01 2001-02 2002-03
Health Sciences  $587 $610 $637 $663 $690 
Library Sciences  587 610 637 663 690 
Management  596 620 647 686 727 
Professional Studies  587 610 637 663 690 
 Teacher Preparation (1)   445 465 485 
 Special Education (1)    425 450 470 
Social Work  560 588 612 637 663 

(1) Effective with the 2000-01 academic year, separate tuition rates were established for the Teacher 

Preparation and Special Education programs.  In prior years, participants in such programs were given tuition 

vouchers as a credit to the stated tuition.

Student Financial Aid

During the 2001-02 academic year, approximately 62% of all students at Simmons received 
some type of financial aid through the College.  Financial aid is awarded in a combination 
of institutional, federal and state grants, loans, and part-time work.  The College admits 
students without regard to their ability to pay and is strongly committed to providing a 
high quality education for all its students regardless of their financial circumstances. 

The following table indicates the extent to which the College has provided financial aid to 
its students. 
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Scholarships, Loans and Other Financial Aid

Fiscal Years Ending June 30
 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002
Institutional Scholarships: 
 Unrestricted $8,519,534 $8,127,946 $7,389,577 $6,972,466 $6,886,658 
 Restricted 1,964,753 1,863,254 2,411,106 2,198,232 3,086,555 
 Federal Match 362,209 264,438 240,797 140,033 183,284 
Federal Scholarships 1,408,074 1,574,199 1,383,949 1,186,347 1,421,035 
State Scholarships 254,921 339,871 364,092 369,350 387,600 
  -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- 
Total Scholarships 12,509,491 12,169,708 11,789,521 10,866,428 11,965,132 

Institutional Loans 296,301 238,208 552,908 536,869 846,037 
Federal Loans 527,550 560,650 544,645 622,719 588,400 
  -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- 
Total Loans 823,851 798,858 1,097,553 1,159,588 1,434,437 

Work-Study Program 730,761 655,377 744,781 896,018 436,303 
  -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- 
Total Financial Aid $14,064,103 $13,623,943 $13,631,855 $12,922,034 $13,835,872

FINANCIAL MATTERS

The College prepares its annual operating budget based on requests by academic and 
administrative department heads.  The operating budget is then reviewed by the 
President, deans, and vice presidents and modified in the context of the College’s strategic 
goals and revenue projections.  Recommendations from the President are presented for 
approval to the Board of Trustees’ Finance Committee in April.  The Finance Committee 
submits its recommendations to the full Board of Trustees for its final approval during the 
May meeting. 

Accounting

The College operates on a fiscal year ending June 30.  Displayed in the following table are 
the Statements of Activities for 1998 through 2002, reflecting the results of the College's 
operations.  This information should be read in conjunction with the College's audited 
financial statements for 2001 and 2002, the footnotes thereto, and the report of the 
College’s independent auditors, Deloitte & Touche LLP, which are included as Appendix B 
to this Official Statement.
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Statement of Activities
For the Fiscal Years Ending June 30 

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002
Operating Revenues: 
Tuition and fees $42,831,494 $44,794,736 $45,610,212 $47,685,600 $50,598,023 
Less college unrestricted scholarships (8,519,534) (8,127,946) (7,389,577) (6,972,466) (6,886,658) 
 ------------------ ------------------ ------------------ ------------------ ----------------- 
Net tuition and fees 34,311,960 36,666,790 38,220,635 40,713,134 43,711,365 

Government and private grants 3,895,217 4,191,433 4,203,823 3,618,129 4,006,848 
Investment return 2,330,427 3,162,341 3,858,184 4,558,570 2,953,860 
Gifts 1,714,407 3,240,045 5,188,458 4,888,816 7,792,102 
Auxiliary enterprises 7,840,396 8,185,925 8,339,079 9,293,254 10,135,968 
Other revenues 1,863,994 1,692,547 2,771,039 3,537,040 3,417,628 
Net assets released from restrictions 2,748,938 3,486,599 6,865,757 5,567,852 5,428,519 
Nonoperating assets used for operations 1,824,000 2,450,000    
Nonoperating assets used for funding 
 voluntary separation plan 1,740,000     
 ------------------ ------------------ ------------------ ------------------ ----------------- 
Total operating revenues 58,269,339 63,075,680 69,446,975 72,176,795 77,446,290 
 ------------------ ------------------ ------------------ ------------------ -----------------
Operating Expenses: 
Instruction 28,968,021 28,747,808 30,933,798 33,813,430 34,929,766 
Academic support 8,089,080 8,916,868 9,583,791 9,598,310 11,589,410 
Student services 4,293,377 5,719,435 5,313,960 5,403,137 5,157,813 
Institutional support and advancement 8,696,997 10,613,229 13,218,572 12,595,466 14,166,498 
Sponsored programs and research 1,734,153 2,091,873 2,115,153 1,763,347 1,823,515 
Auxiliary enterprises 5,874,496 5,639,779 6,120,476 6,673,449 6,833,856 
 ------------------ ------------------ ------------------ ------------------ ----------------- 
Total operating expenses 57,656,124 61,728,992 67,285,750 69,847,139 74,500,858 
 ------------------ ------------------ ------------------ ------------------ ----------------- 
Net Operating Income 613,215 1,346,688 2,161,225 2,329,656 2,945,432 
 ------------------ ------------------ ------------------ ------------------ ----------------- 
Nonoperating (Expenses) Revenues: 
Investment return 6,615,919 3,699,595 3,092,883 (4,325,126) (6,602,031)
Gifts 464,125     
Other income 45,017 46,488 42,013 52,229 82,562 
Other expenses (515,731) (594,654) (242,520) (876,901) (622,576) 
Nonoperating assets used for operations (1,824,000) (2,450,000)   
Nonoperating assets used for funding  
voluntary separation plan (1,740,000)     
 ------------------ ------------------ ------------------ ------------------ ----------------- 
Total nonoperating (expenses) revenues 3,045,330 701,429 2,892,376 (5,149,798) (7,142,045) 
 ------------------ ------------------ ------------------ ------------------ ----------------- 
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Statement of Activities (continued)
For the Fiscal Years Ending June 30 

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002
(Decrease) increase in unrestricted net 
assets before extraordinary loss on  
retirement of debt and cumulative effect 
of change in accounting for summer-term  
revenue 3,658,545 2,048,117 5,053,601 (2,820,142) (4,196,613) 
    
Extraordinary loss on retirement of debt  (790,675)   (3,785,026) 

Cumulative effect of change 
 in accounting for Summer-term revenue 2,090,079     
 ------------------ ------------------ ------------------ ------------------ ------------------ 
Decrease (increase) in unrestricted  
net assets 5,748,624 1,257,442 5,053,601 (2,820,142) (7,981,639) 
 ------------------ ------------------ ------------------ ------------------ ------------------ 
Changes in Temporarily Restricted 
Net Assets: 
Investment return 17,154,737 11,790,698 10,323,873 (9,339,929) (10,650,813) 
Gifts 726,717 1,004,432 4,285,065 2,404,426 2,683,995 
Net assets released from restrictions (2,713,366) (3,313,059) (6,929,919) (5,850,865) (5,280,242) 
 ------------------ ------------------ ------------------ ------------------ ------------------ 
Decrease (increase) in temporarily 
Restricted net assets 15,168,088 9,482,071 7,679,019 (12,786,368) (13,247,060) 
 ------------------ ------------------ ------------------ ------------------ ------------------  
Changes in Permanently Restricted 
Net Assets: 
Investment return 1,415,512 1,091,873 913,415 (784,731) (1,049,926) 
Gifts 931,598 2,514,942 66,032 1,289,156 791,207 
Net assets released from restrictions (35,572) (173,540) 64,162 283,014 (148,277) 
 ------------------ ------------------ ------------------ ------------------ ------------------ 
Decrease (increase) in permanently 
Restricted net assets 2,311,538 3,433,275 1,043,609 787,439 (406,996) 
 ------------------ ------------------ ------------------ ------------------ ------------------ 

Decrease (increase) in Net Assets 23,228,250 14,172,788 13,776,229 (14,819,071) (21,635,695) 

Net Assets, Beginning of Year 148,192,522 171,420,772 185,593,560 199,369,789 184,550,718 
 ------------------ ------------------ ------------------ ------------------ ------------------ 

Net Assets, End of Year $171,420,772 $185,593,560 $199,369,789 $184,550,718    $162,915,023
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Net Asset Allocation

Fiscal Years Ending June 30
 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002

Unrestricted $62,235,150 $63,492,592 $68,546,193 $65,726,051 $57,744,412 
Temporarily Restricted 75,646,680 85,128,751 92,807,770 80,021,402 66,774,342 
Permanently Restricted 33,538,942 36,972,217 38,015,826 38,803,265 38,396,269 
 ------------------- ------------------- ------------------- ------------------- ------------------- 
Total $171,420,772 $185,593,560 $199,369,789 $184,550,718 $162,915,023

Endowment and Similar Net Assets

The Investment Committee of the Board of Trustees determines Simmons’s investment 
policy.  The Committee has decided to pursue an investment plan that, over the long term, 
is expected to enhance the real purchasing power of the College’s assets.  The Committee 
recognizes that combinations of asset classes and investment strategies produce 
diversification benefits which enhance the expected return at any given risk level.  It is 
committed to maintaining a broadly diversified investment program. 

The current asset allocation long-term targets are 45% U.S. equities, 10% international 
equities, 30% fixed income, and 15% hedge funds (fund of funds). 

The long-term investment objective of the endowment funds is to earn an annual rate of 
return that exceeds the inflation rate, as measured by the Consumer Price Index, plus 5 
percentage points.  In addition, the investment plan attempts to exceed a composite 
benchmark index comprised of 70% S&P 500 plus 30% Lehman Aggregate. 

The market value of the endowment and its asset allocation as of the end of each fiscal 
year was as follows: 

Asset Allocation of the Endowment and Market Value  

Fiscal Years Ending June 30
 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002

Cash & short-term $6,731,627 $13,743,890 $17,399,948 $7,747,780 $2,220,197 
Bonds & notes 53,385,322 45,891,250 38,596,222 40,874,690 34,098,320 
Equities 76,183,913 90,611,623 102,452,770 95,403,640 88,685,695 
 ----------------- ------------------ ------------------ ------------------ ------------------ 
Total Market Value $136,300,862 $150,246,763 $158,448,940 $144,026,110 $125,004,212



Appendix A  

A-25

As of March 31, 2003, the total market value of the endowment was $114,257,948. 
Wellington Management, Waddell & Reed and the Commonfund under the supervision of 
the Investment Committee of the Board of Trustees manage the College’s endowment 
funds, including short-term investments. 

SPONSORED PROGRAMS

The College received $1,960,094 from government and private grants and contracts for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2002 (exclusive of student aid and work-study), of which 
$680,265 was for educational and general purposes and $1,279,829 was for research 
projects.

Funding of sponsored programs primarily supports faculty salaries, equipment, travel, and 
supplies for basic and applied research.  Continuation of these sponsored programs in most 
instances is contingent upon future contracts and grants from government and industry.  
Because competition for grants is intense, there can be no assurance that the level of grant 
funding will be maintained.  Expenses related to sponsored programs would generally not 
be incurred without independent sponsorship. 

GIFTS, GRANTS AND BEQUESTS

Simmons has a permanent, professionally staffed Institutional Advancement Office, which 
conducts programs for annual and capital gifts from graduates, parents, friends and 
businesses, seeks foundation and government grants, and promotes bequests and deferred 
gifts through various trust instruments and a pooled income fund.  The Institutional 
Advancement Office closely adheres to the expressed wish of each donor concerning the use 
and purpose of gifts to in the administration and accounting of all funds. 

The total gifts, private grants and bequests classified by source for the past five fiscal years 
were as follows: 

 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002
Source:
Alumni $624,841 $1,741,167 $2,094,662 $2,703,057 $3,501,980 
Friends 506,028 1,406,798 1,674,603 981,586 1,369,118 
Corporations, foundations 239,208 710,195 1,205,503 1,098,887 1,590,009 
 ---------------- ---------------- ---------------- ---------------- ---------------- 
Total (net of pledges) 1,370,077 3,858,160 4,974,768 4,783,530 6,461,107 
Pledges 2,466,770 2,901,259 4,564,787 3,798,868 4,806,198 
 ---------------- ---------------- ---------------- ---------------- ---------------- 
Total $3,836,847 $6,759,419 $9,539,555 $8,582,398 $11,267,305
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In 1996, the College began the 'quiet phase' of the largest capital campaign in its history, a 
$50 million campaign to strengthen academic programs and to improve facilities for 
teaching and learning.  The campaign's public phase began in May 2000, and by May 2002 
it was clear the College would exceed the original campaign goal.  Accordingly, the Board of 
Trustees voted to raise the campaign goal to $65 million and extend the timetable to June 
2004.  To date, the campaign has raised $53,200,000 and appears on track to achieve its 
revised $65 million goal. 

INSURANCE

Currently, the College has the following insurance coverage: 

Property and Liability Insurance  A combination policy covering: (i) all buildings and their 
contents on a comprehensive perils basis, including fire, lightning, wind, explosion, 
vandalism, malicious mischief, flood and earth movement; (ii) comprehensive general 
liability covering the College and its employees; and (iii) loss of income from loss of tuition 
and fees resulting from damage to academic or residence buildings by fire or extended 
coverage perils. 

Excess Liability (Umbrella) Insurance  A policy providing coverage for claims in excess over 
the underlying general liability insurance, automobile insurance, and employer’s liability. 

Directors and Officers Liability Insurance  A policy providing coverage for the College, its 
employees, its officers and members of the Corporation for claims arising from their acts or 
failures to act in the course of their duty (excluding bodily injury and property damage 
claims).

Fiduciary Responsibility Insurance  A policy covering employees' wrongful acts, while 
acting in the course of their duties as fiduciaries, only with respect to employee benefit 
programs. 

Workmen’s Compensation and Employers' Liability Insurance  Coverage is provided in 
accordance with statutes of The Commonwealth of Massachusetts. 
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PENSION PROGRAM

Simmons participates in programs with Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association and 
the College Retirement Equities Fund for the benefit of its employees.  All employees of 
Simmons, after meeting certain eligibility requirements, may participate in the plans.  The 
College contributes 9% of each employee's base salary for the purchase of individually-
owned, immediately-vested and fully-funded annuities.  Employees may make elective 
deferrals in excess of their 3% mandatory contribution up to their maximum allowable 
limit.  All pensions are fully funded, and Simmons is in compliance with the Employee 
Retirement Income Security Act of 1974. 

LITIGATION

Simmons is not aware of any litigation pending or threatened wherein any unfavorable 
decision would adversely affect the ability of Simmons to enter into the Agreement and to 
carry out its obligations thereunder or would have a materially adverse impact on the 
financial condition of the College. 

This letter and the information contained herein are submitted to the Authority for 
inclusion in its Official Statement relating to its Revenue Bonds, Simmons College Issue, 
Series F.  The use of this letter by the Authority in connection with the initial sale of the 
Series F Bonds and the execution and delivery thereof by its President and Treasurer have 
been duly authorized by Simmons College. 

SIMMONS COLLEGE 

By: /s/  Daniel S. Cheever, Jr. 
 Daniel S. Cheever, Jr.

President

By: /s/  Humberto F. Gonçalves
Humberto F. Gonçalves

 Vice President for Finance & Treasurer
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

To the Members of the Audit Committee of 
  Simmons College 
Boston, Massachusetts 

We have audited the accompanying statements of financial position of Simmons College (the “College”) as of 
June 30, 2002 and 2001, and the related statements of activities, and cash flows for the years then ended.  
These financial statements are the responsibility of the College’s management.  Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a test 
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  An audit also includes 
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating 
the overall financial statement presentation.  We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our 
opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the College as of June 30, 2002 and 2001, and the changes in its net assets, and its cash flows for 
the years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

\s\DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLLP 

Boston, Massachusetts 
August 29, 2002 
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SIMMONS COLLEGE
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
JUNE 30, 2002 AND 2001

ASSETS 2002 2001
CURRENT ASSETS:
  Cash and cash equivalents (Note 1) 4,163,859$ 8,131,597$
  Interest accrued and receivable 584,718 1,149,442
  Accounts receivable, net (Note 2) 4,880,316 4,374,167
  Contributions receivable, net (Note 5) 2,590,185 1,684,119
  Prepaid expenses 482,864 421,924

          Total current assets 12,701,942 15,761,249

OTHER ASSETS:
  Amounts held under agreement with bond trustee (Note 7) 278,045 16,509,838
  Investments (Note 4) 138,155,260 158,721,171
  Property, plant and equipment, net (Note 6) 81,570,896 58,193,031
  Deferred charges – bonds payable, net of amortization 1,587,617 1,652,069
  Loans to students, net (Note 3) 7,400,447 6,788,055
  Contributions receivable, net (Note 5) 2,216,013 2,114,749

           Total other assets 231,208,278 243,978,913

TOTAL ASSETS 243,910,220$ 259,740,162$

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
  Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 8,986,539$ 8,747,179$
  Deposits payable and deferred revenues 3,276,411 2,488,983
  Notes payable (Note 8) 242,421 242,421
  Current portion of bonds payable (Note 7) 787,250 720,862

           Total current liabilities 13,292,621 12,199,445
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES:
  Bonds payable (Note 7) 60,891,570 57,763,821
  U.S. Government loan advances 3,404,209 3,394,528
  Other 3,406,797 1,831,650

           Total long-term liabilities 67,702,576 62,989,999

           Total liabilities 80,995,197 75,189,444

NET ASSETS
  Unrestricted (Note 9) 57,744,412 65,726,051
  Temporarily restricted (Note 10) 66,774,342 80,021,402
  Permanently restricted (Note 11) 38,396,269 38,803,265

           Total net assets 162,915,023 184,550,718

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 243,910,220$ 259,740,162$

See notes to financial statements.
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SIMMONS COLLEGE

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2002 AND 2001

2002 2001

OPERATING REVENUES –
  Unrestricted revenues and other support:
    Tuition and fees 50,598,023$ 47,685,600$
    Less college unrestricted scholarships (6,886,658) (6,972,466)

           Net tuition and fees 43,711,365 40,713,134

    Government and private grants 4,006,848 3,618,129
    Investment return 2,953,860 4,558,570
    Gifts 7,792,102 4,888,816
    Auxiliary enterprises 10,135,968 9,293,254
    Other revenues 3,417,628 3,537,040
    Net assets released from restrictions 5,428,519 5,567,852

           Total operating revenues 77,446,290 72,176,795

OPERATING EXPENSES:
  Instruction 34,929,766 33,813,430
  Academic support 11,589,410 9,598,310
  Student services 5,157,813 5,403,137
  Institutional support and advancement 14,166,498 12,595,466
  Sponsored programs and research 1,823,515 1,763,347
  Auxiliary enterprises 6,833,856 6,673,449

           Total operating expenses 74,500,858 69,847,139

NET OPERATING INCOME 2,945,432 2,329,656

NONOPERATING (EXPENSES) REVENUES :
  Investment return (6,602,031) (4,325,126)
  Other income 82,562 52,229
  Other expenses (622,576) (876,901)

           Total nonoperating expenses, net (7,142,045) (5,149,798)

DECREASE IN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS BEFORE
  EXTRAORDINARY LOSS ON RETIREMENT OF DEBT (4,196,613) (2,820,142)

(Continued)
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SIMMONS COLLEGE

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2002 AND 2001

2002 2001

EXTRAORDINARY LOSS ON RETIREMENT OF DEBT (3,785,026) -

DECREASE IN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS (7,981,639) (2,820,142)

CHANGES IN TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS:
  Investment return (10,650,813) (9,339,929)
  Gifts 2,683,995 2,404,426
  Net assets released from restrictions (5,280,242) (5,850,865)

           Decrease in temporarily restricted net assets (13,247,060) (12,786,368)

CHANGES IN PERMANENTLY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS:
  Investment return (1,049,926) (784,731)
  Gifts 791,207 1,289,156
  Net assets released from restrictions (148,277) 283,014

           (Decrease) increase in permanently restricted net assets (406,996) 787,439

DECREASE IN NET ASSETS (21,635,695) (14,819,071)

NET ASSETS, Beginning of year 184,550,718 199,369,789

NET ASSETS, End of year 162,915,023$  184,550,718$

See notes to financial statements. (Concluded)
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SIMMONS COLLEGE

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2002 AND 2001

2002 2001

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
  Decrease in net assets (21,635,695)$ (14,819,071)$
  Adjustments to reconcile decrease in net assets to net cash flows
    provided by operating activities:
      Extraordinary loss on retirement of debt 3,785,026 -
      Depreciation 5,765,765 5,449,496
      Amortization 56,688 59,412
      Stocks and gifts in kind (814,760) (1,456,810)
      Net realized and unrealized losses on investments 18,450,345 16,618,299
      Contributions for long-term investment (2,550,321) (1,806,124)
      Changes in assets and liabilities:
        (Increase) decrease in assets (1,009,694) 512,780
        Increase (decrease) in liabilities 2,576,614 (302,235)

               Net cash flows provided by operating activities 4,623,968 4,255,754

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
  Purchases of property, plant and equipment (29,119,870) (17,863,871)
  Proceeds from the sale of investments 147,583,699 151,204,539
  Purchases of investments (144,677,132) (154,067,013)
  Net decrease in amounts held under
    agreement with bond trustee 16,231,793 9,083,656
  Student loans advanced (16,506,743) (12,061,530)
  Student loans collected 15,929,351 10,969,041

               Net cash flows used in investing activities (10,558,902) (12,735,178)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
  Proceeds from issuance of bonds 31,140,000 -
  Repayments of long-term debt (30,979,781) (670,916)
  Payment of debt issuance costs (743,344) -
  Contributions to be used for long-term investment 2,550,321 1,806,124

               Net cash flows provided by financing activities 1,967,196 1,135,208

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (3,967,738) (7,344,216)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:
  Beginning of year 8,131,597$  15,475,813$

  End of year 4,163,859$  8,131,597$

SUPPLEMENTAL DATA – Interest paid, net of capitalized
  interest of $1,114,020 and $1,646,841 in 2002 and 2001,
  respectively 1,944,083$  1,579,515$

See notes to financial statements.
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SIMMONS COLLEGE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2002 AND 2001 

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization – Simmons College (the “College”) is a private, nonsectarian institution located in 
Boston’s Back Bay that currently serves approximately 1,200 undergraduate women and 2,250 men and 
women in its graduate programs at the master and doctoral levels. 

The College is exempt from federal income taxes under the provisions of Section 501(a) of the Internal 
Revenue Code as an organization described in Section 501(c)(3).

Basis of Presentation – The financial statements of Simmons College have been prepared on the accrual 
basis of accounting.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America for private, not-for-profit 
organizations require classification of net assets, revenues, expenses, gains, and losses into three 
categories based on the existence or absence of externally imposed restrictions.  The categories – 
permanently restricted, temporarily restricted, and unrestricted net assets – are defined as follows: 

Unrestricted – Unrestricted net assets are not subject to donor-imposed restrictions.  Unrestricted net 
assets may be designated for specific purposes by actions of the Simmons College Board of Trustees 
(the “Trustees”).

Temporarily Restricted – Temporarily restricted net assets generally result from contributions and
other inflows of assets whose use by the College is limited by donor-imposed restrictions that may or 
will be met either by actions of the College and/or the passage of time.  When the restrictions have
been met (that is, the time requirement has expired or the restricted purpose is accomplished),
temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the 
statements of activities as net assets released from restrictions.

Permanently Restricted – Permanently restricted net assets are subject to donor-imposed stipulations 
that they be maintained in perpetuity by the College. Generally, the donors of these assets permit the 
College to use all or part of the income earned and gains, if any, on related investments for general or 
specific purposes. 

Tuition and Fee Revenue – The College recognizes tuition and fee revenue in the period in which the 
educational instruction is performed.  Accordingly, tuition and fees received in advance are deferred
until the educational instruction is provided.

Use of Estimates – The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets 
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses 
during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Cash and Cash Equivalents – Cash and cash equivalents include highly liquid investments purchased 
with original maturities of three months or less. Included in cash and cash equivalents at June 30, 2001
is approximately $2,063,000 representing cash held by a bond trustee to be used to satisfy current 
liabilities.

Investments – Investments in equity securities with readily determinable fair values and all investments
in debt securities are recorded at fair value. Gains or losses on investments are recognized as increases 
or decreases in unrestricted net assets, unless their use is temporarily or permanently restricted by 
explicit donor stipulations or by law. 

The Trustees have interpreted state law as requiring realized and unrealized gains of permanently
restricted net assets to be retained in a restricted net asset classification until appropriated by the 
Trustees and expended.  State law allows the Trustees to appropriate so much of net appreciation of 
permanently restricted net assets as is prudent considering the College’s long- and short-term needs,
present and anticipated financial requirements, expected total return on its investments, price-level
trends, and general economic conditions.  For the year ended June 30, 2002, the Trustees appropriated 
$2,115,790 of the net appreciation of permanently restricted net assets.  For the year ended June 30, 
2001, $1,177,550 was appropriated. 

The College invests in various securities including U.S. Government securities, corporate debt 
instruments and corporate stocks.  Investment securities, in general, are exposed to various risks such as 
interest rate, credit, and overall market volatility.  Due to the level of risk associated with certain
investment securities, it is reasonably possible that such changes could materially affect the amounts
reported in the financial statements.

Contributions – Contributions received, including unconditional promises, are recognized as revenues 
when the donors’ commitments are received.  Unconditional promises are recognized at the estimated
present value of the future cash flows, net of allowances.  Unconditional promises are discounted using 
the risk-free interest rate applicable to the year in which the promise was received.  Promises of noncash 
assets are recorded at their fair market values.  Conditional promises are recorded at their fair values 
when donor stipulations are substantially met.

Funds Held in Trust by Others – Funds held in trust by others represent resources neither in the 
possession nor under the control of the College but held and administered by outside trustees, with the 
College deriving income or a residual interest from the assets of such funds.  Funds held in trust by
others are recorded in long-term investments of the College and recognized at the estimated fair value of 
the assets or the present value of the future cash flows when the irrevocable trust is established or the 
College is notified of its existence.

Property, Plant and Equipment – Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost or, if acquired by
gift, at fair market value on the date of receipt. Depreciation is computed by the straight-line method 
based on the estimated useful lives of the assets. Additions to plant assets are capitalized and include 
major renovations and repair projects.  Minor improvements and repairs are charged to current 
operations.  The College reports gifts of property and equipment as unrestricted net assets, unless 
explicit donor stipulations specify how the donated assets must be used.  Gifts of long-lived assets with 
explicit restrictions that specify how the assets are to be used and gifts of cash or other assets that must
be used to acquire long-lived assets are reported as restricted net assets.  Absent explicit donor 
stipulations about how long those long-lived assets must be maintained, the College reports expirations 
of donor restrictions when the donated or acquired long-lived assets are placed in service.
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Fair Value of Financial Instruments – The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, accounts 
receivable, and accrued interest receivable approximate fair value because of the short maturities of 
these financial instruments.  The fair values of investments are based upon values provided by external 
managers or quoted market values.  In the limited case in which such values are not available, historical 
cost is used as an estimate of market value.

Reasonable estimates of the fair values of the notes receivable from students under government loan 
programs and advances from the federal government for student loans could not be made because the 
notes receivable are not saleable and can only be assigned to the U.S. Government or its designees. 

The carrying amounts of accounts payable and student deposits approximate fair value because of the 
short maturities of these financial instruments. 

The carrying amounts of notes and bonds payable approximate the fair values of these instruments at the 
stated rates and terms at June 30, 2002 and 2001.

The fair value of the interest rate swap agreement was estimated by obtaining a quote from a broker.

Operations – The statements of activities report changes in unrestricted, temporarily restricted, and 
permanently restricted assets from both operating and nonoperating activities.  Unrestricted operating 
revenues consist of those items primarily attributable to the primary educational mission of the College.
In addition, they include income and gains of the College’s unrestricted long-term investments as 
determined by the Trustees. 

Amounts received that are permanently or temporarily restricted by the donor are reported as increases 
to those net asset classes.  When a qualifying expenditure occurs or a time restriction expires, 
temporarily restricted net assets are recognized in the unrestricted net assets as net assets released from
restrictions.

Costs related to the operation and maintenance of the physical plant, including depreciation, have been 
allocated to functional classifications based on building square footage and departmental usage.  Interest 
expense on external debt is allocated to the activities that have most directly benefited from the debt 
proceeds.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements – In April 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board 
(“FASB”) issued Statement No. 145, “Rescission of FASB Statement Nos. 4, 44 and 62, Amendment of 
FASB Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 13, and Technical Corrections.”
SFAS No. 145 will require gains and losses on extinguishments of debt to be classified as income or loss 
from continuing operations rather than as extraordinary items as previously required under SFAS No. 4.
Extraordinary treatment will be required for certain extinguishments as provided in Accounting
Principles Board Opinion No. 30.  The statement also amended SFAS No. 13 for certain sales-leaseback
and sublease accounting. The College is required to adopt the provisions of SFAS No. 145 effective for 
the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2002. 

Reclassifications – Certain reclassifications have been made to prior-year amounts to conform to the 
current-year presentation.
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2. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable outstanding consisted of the following at June 30: 

2002 2001

Accounts receivable – student and other 4,974,233$ 4,388,602$
Accounts receivable for sponsored programs 218,488 197,970
Federal interest subsidy 187,595 187,595
Less allowance for doubtful accounts (500,000) (400,000)

Total 4,880,316$  4,374,167$

3. LOANS TO STUDENTS

Loans to students are net of an allowance for uncollectible loans of approximately $235,000 and
$200,000 at June 30, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

4. INVESTMENTS

Investments consisted of the following at June 30: 

2002 2001
Market Market
Value Cost Value Cost

Short-term investments 3,042,078$ 3,036,764$ 8,208,833$ 8,206,276$
Bonds 38,819,669 37,746,699 45,826,722 44,918,984
Equities 95,534,259 99,889,489 103,711,695 94,016,396
Other 759,254 754,139 973,921 973,921

138,155,260$ 141,427,091$ 158,721,171$ 148,115,577$

The composition of investment return for the years ended June 30 is as follows:

U nrestricted
T em po rarily

R estricted

P erm anently

R estricted

2002

T otal

2001

T otal

Interest and dividend income 2,953,860$ 1,752,963$ 65,748$ 4,772,571$ 6,727,084$
Net realized (losses) gains (1,378,733) (3,331,310) 137,124 (4,572,919) 6,237,018
Unrealized loss on interest rate

swap agreement (1,671,137) - - (1,671,137) -
Net change in unrealized gains
 and losses on investments (3,552,161) (9,072,466) (1,252,798) (13,877,425) (22,855,318)

Total investment return on
 long-term investments (3,648,171)$  (10,650,813)$  (1,049,926)$  (15,348,910)$  (9,891,216)$
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4. INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Under the College’s spending policy, the Trustees in both fiscal 2002 and 2001, approved a 5% spending 
rate which was based on a three-year moving average of the market value of the endowment.  Under the 
spending policy, $6,982,180 and $6,176,425 was utilized for operations in fiscal 2002 and 2001, 
respectively.

5. CONTRIBUTIONS RECEIVABLE

The following is a schedule of contributions receivable due in the years ending June 30: 

2002 2001

In one year or less 2,670,294$ 1,736,205$
Between one year and five years 2,404,556 2,353,158

5,074,850 4,089,363
Less allowance for uncollectible contributions (148,645) (117,491)
Less discount to present value (120,007) (173,004)

Contributions receivable, net 4,806,198$ 3,798,868$

6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost or fair value at date of gift, less accumulated
depreciation, and are summarized as follows at June 30: 

2002 2001

Land and improvements 1,391,727$ 1,391,727$
Buildings and improvements 76,712,732 73,607,809
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 28,839,217 23,048,548
Construction in process 27,412,340 7,844,405
Library books 2,767,026 2,086,923

137,123,042 107,979,412

Less accumulated depreciation (55,552,146) (49,786,381)

Property, plant and equipment 81,570,896$ 58,193,031$

Construction in process includes the accumulated construction costs of a building for the Schools of 
Social Work and Library and Information Science, including related parking facilities as well as 
uncompleted renovations to academic and administrative buildings.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets.
The estimated useful lives used in computing depreciation are as follows:

Buildings 40 years

Equipment 3-15 years

Library books 10 years
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7. BONDS PAYABLE

On November 1, 2001, the College issued Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities Authority
(“MHEFA”) Variable Rate Demand Variable Mode Revenue Bonds, Simmons College Issue Series E
(the “Bonds”) of $31,140,000.  The primary purpose of the issue was to defease MHEFA Revenue
Bonds, Simmons College Series D, maturing October 1, 2013, 2014, 2015, 2020 and 2029 in the
outstanding principal amount of $27,225,000.

The defeasance was achieved through the deposit of $30,396,656 of the proceeds of the Bonds in a 
refunding trust and has been accounted for as legal defeasance under SFAS No. 140,  “Accounting for
Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities.”  Accordingly, the 
defeased bonds and the assets in the defeasance trust have been removed from the accompanying
statement of financial position at June 30, 2002. During the year ended June 30, 2002, the College
recorded an extraordinary loss of $3,785,026 on the defeasance.

Monies in the defeasance trust have been applied to the purchase of noncallable direct obligations of the 
United States Government.  The government obligations, together with the interest thereon, will be 
sufficient in amount and available when necessary to pay when due the principal and interest on the 
Simmons College Series D Bonds until October 1, 2010, on which date any Simmons College Series D 
Bonds remaining outstanding will be redeemed at the applicable redemption price.

Interest on the Bonds is payable at a variable rate; however, at the time of issuing the Bonds, the College 
entered into an interest-rate swap agreement with a major investment bank in order to effectively convert 
the interest rate to a fixed rate of 4.39%.  The swap agreement expires at maturity of the Bonds, and the 
notional principal amount will decrease as the Bonds mature.  Although this financial instrument 
involves counterparty credit exposure, the counterparty for this swap agreement is a major financial 
institution that meets the College’s criteria for financial stability and creditworthiness.  The fair value of 
the swap at June 30, 2002 decreased by approximately $1,700,000 and is reflected in nonoperating
investment return in the statement of activities.  The derivative liability for the fair value of the swap
agreement is included in other liabilities in the statement of financial position. 

Bonds payable consisted of the following at June 30: 

2002 2001

  MHEFA Revenue Bonds:
    Simmons College Series C, 4.0% – 5.125%, payable
      through 2028 21,775,000$ 21,775,000$
    Simmons College Series D, 4.6% – 6.15%, payable
      through 2029 5,275,000 32,500,000
    Simmons College Series E Variable Rate Demand Variable
      Mode Revenue Bonds, payable through 2029 31,140,000 -
    Simmons College Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds,
      Capital Asset Program, Series B and C, payable through 2010 3,018,820 3,314,683

    Simmons College Mortgage Bonds, 9.875%,
      payable through 2003 470,000 895,000

61,678,820 58,484,683

Less current portion 787,250 720,862

Bonds payable 60,891,570$ 57,763,821$
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7. BONDS PAYABLE (CONTINUED) 

The College receives an annual interest grant from the federal government in the amount of $250,126 
designed to reduce the interest cost of the mortgage bonds. 

Collateral – The following is a summary of collateral under various debt agreements: 

 Issue Collateral

MHEFA Revenue Bonds Pledge of tuition receipts 

Simmons College MHEFA Variable Rate
Demand Revenue Bonds Pledge of tuition receipts 

Simmons College Mortgage Bonds Park Science Center

Loan Covenants – Several of the loan agreements contain covenants and financial ratios which require 
compliance by the College.  Certain of the agreements also provide for restrictions on, among other
things, additional indebtedness and dispositions of property.

Aggregate Principal Payments – Aggregate principal payments are due as follows:

Year Ended June 30

2003 787,250$
2004 870,184
2005 1,014,776
2006 1,221,146
2007 1,334,422
Thereafter 56,451,042

Total 61,678,820$

The College maintains certain investment funds with the bond trustee and MHEFA.  The balances of 
these funds are $278,045 and $18,572,531 as of June 30, 2002 and 2001, respectively.  For the year
ended June 30, 2001, $2,062,693 is included in cash and cash equivalents. 

8. NOTES PAYABLE

Notes payable totaling $242,421 consists of 4% demand notes owed to an irrevocable trust of which the 
College is the beneficiary. The College’s interest in the trust is reflected as an asset of the College.
Certain pooled assets with a carrying value of $588,595 are pledged as collateral for these notes. 
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9. UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS 

Unrestricted net assets consist of the following at June 30: 

2002 2001

  Operating and other 3,173,694$ 8,180,016$
  Designated for long-term investment 35,342,030 39,324,781
  Net investment in plant 19,228,688 18,221,254

57,744,412$ 65,726,051$

10. TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS 

Temporarily restricted net assets consist of the following at June 30: 

2002 2001

Educational and general purposes 1,634,245$ 1,657,191$
Capital needs 6,562,265 5,157,606
Student aid 308,248 465,825
Annuity and life income agreements 2,018,244 2,411,026

10,523,002 9,691,648
Net appreciation of permanently restricted net assets
   available for board appropriation 56,251,340 70,329,754

66,774,342$ 80,021,402$

11. PERMANENTLY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Permanently restricted net assets as of June 30 are restricted to: 

2002 2001

Endowment 30,165,725$ 29,535,957$
Student loans 1,385,196 1,350,497
Annuity and life income agreements 136,033 285,927
Perpetual trusts held by third parties 6,709,315 7,630,884

38,396,269$ 38,803,265$

12. RETIREMENT PLANS

Substantially all employees of the College have individual annuity accounts with the Teachers Insurance
and Annuity Association and the College Retirement Equities Fund.  Total retirement expense charged 
to operations was $1,920,963 and $1,798,111 for 2002 and 2001, respectively.

13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

As of June 30, 2002, the College has contractual obligations outstanding of approximately $1,400,000
for construction of the new building and other campus renovations.
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13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

In conducting its activities, the College, from time to time, is the subject of various claims and also has 
claims against others.  In management’s opinion, the ultimate resolution of such claims at June 30, 2002 
would not have a material effect on the financial position of the College.

The College receives significant financial assistance from the federal government.  Entitlements to the 
resources are generally conditional upon compliance with terms and conditions of the grant agreements
and applicable federal regulations, including the expenditure of the resources for eligible purposes.
Substantially all federal financial assistance is subject to financial and compliance audits.  Any
disallowances become liabilities of the College.

*  *  *  *  *  *  
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FORM OF OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL

April 23, 2003

Massachusetts Health and Educational
   Facilities Authority
99 Summer Street, Suite 1000
Boston, Massachusetts  02110

We have acted as bond counsel to the Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities Authority
(the “Authority”) in connection with the issuance by the Authority of the following bonds (the
“Bonds”):

$36,940,000
Revenue Bonds, Simmons College Issue,

Series F, dated April 15, 2003

We have examined the law and such certified proceedings and other papers as deemed necessary to
render this opinion, including the Loan and Trust Agreement dated as of May 12, 1998, as amended
and supplemented through the Third Supplemental Agreement dated as of April 8, 2003 (as
amended and supplemented, the “Agreement”), among the Authority, Simmons College (the
“Institution”) and JP Morgan Trust Company, National Association, successor to Citizens Bank of
Massachusetts, as Trustee (the “Trustee”).

As to questions of fact material to our opinion we have relied upon representations and covenants of
the Authority and the Institution contained in the Agreement, the certified proceedings and other
certifications of public officials furnished to us, and certifications by officials of the Institution and
others, without undertaking to verify the same by independent investigation.

The Bonds are issued pursuant to the Agreement.  Under the Agreement the Institution has agreed to
make payments sufficient to pay when due the principal (including sinking fund installments) of,
and premium (if any) and interest on the Bonds.  Such payments and other moneys payable to the
Authority or the Trustee under the Agreement, including proceeds derived from any security
provided thereunder (collectively the “Revenues”), and the rights of the Authority under the
Agreement to receive the same (excluding, however, certain administrative fees, indemnification,
and reimbursements), are pledged and assigned by the Authority as security for the Bonds.  The
Bonds are payable solely from the Revenues.

Reference is made to an opinion of even date of Goodwin Procter LLP, counsel to the Institution,
with respect to, among other matters, the corporate existence of the Institution, the power of the
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Institution to carry out the Project (as defined in the Agreement) being refinanced in part by the
Bonds, the power of the Institution to enter into and perform the Agreement, the authorization,
execution and delivery of the Agreement by the Institution and the extent to which the Agreement is
binding and enforceable upon the Institution.

We express no opinion with respect to compliance by the Institution with applicable legal
requirements in connection with the construction, equipping or operation of the Project.

As security for its obligations under the Agreement, the Institution has granted a security interest in
its Tuition Receipts (as described in the Agreement).  As to the filing under the Uniform
Commercial Code (the “Code”) with respect to the Tuition Receipts, reference is made to the
opinion of even date of Goodwin Procter LLP.  To maintain a perfected security interest in the
Tuition Receipts under the Code, the Trustee must file a continuation statement every five years.

The security interest in Tuition Receipts includes the rights of the Institution to receive the same and
the proceeds of such rights.  Pursuant to the Code, a security interest in these proceeds may not
continue to be perfected if the proceeds are not paid over to the Trustee by the Institution within
twenty days of their receipt, are commingled with other funds of the Institution, or are paid by the
Institution to other parties in the ordinary course.  The Institution is obligated to pay over these
proceeds within twenty days of receipt only in the event of its earlier failure to make a required
payment under the Agreement when due and until such payment has been made.  In the event that
the Institution fails to make a required payment when due, the Institution is obligated, to the extent
necessary to make such payment, to pay over immediately to the Trustee the receipts theretofore
received which have not been commingled with other funds and as to which the security interest
remains perfected and to pay over to the Trustee upon receipt any proceeds thereafter received of the
rights to receive the Tuition Receipts.

Under the federal Bankruptcy Code, the security interest in Tuition Receipts may cease to be
effective to the extent derived from rights coming into existence on or after a date ninety days (or, in
some circumstances, one year) prior to the filing of a petition in bankruptcy with respect to the
Institution.

Based on our examination, we are of opinion, as of the date hereof and under existing law, as
follows:

1. The Authority is a duly created and validly existing body corporate and politic and a
public instrumentality of The Commonwealth of Massachusetts with the power to enter into and
perform the Agreement and to issue the Bonds.

2. The Agreement has been duly authorized, executed and delivered by the Authority
and is a valid and binding obligation of the Authority enforceable upon the Authority.  As provided
in Chapter 614 of the Acts of 1968 of The Commonwealth of Massachusetts, as amended, the
Agreement creates a valid lien on the Revenues and on the rights of the Authority or the Trustee on
behalf of the Authority to receive Revenues under the Agreement (except certain rights to
indemnification, reimbursements and fees) on a parity with other bonds issued under the Agreement,
including the Authority’s $21,945,000 Revenue Bonds, Simmons College Issue, Series C, the
Authority’s $32,500,000 Revenue Bonds, Simmons College Issue, Series D, the Authority’s
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$31,140,000 Variable Rate Demand Variable Mode Revenue Bonds, Simmons College Issue, Series
E and the Institution’s borrowing in the amount of $3,700,000 from the proceeds of the Authority’s
Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, Capital Asset Program Issue, Series B and Series C.

3. The Bonds have been duly authorized, executed and delivered by the Authority and
are valid and binding special obligations of the Authority, payable solely from the Revenues.

4. Under existing law, interest on the Bonds is excluded from the gross income of the
owners of the Bonds for federal income tax purposes.  In addition, interest on the Bonds will not be
treated as a preference item in calculating the alternative minimum tax imposed under the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986 (the “IRC”) on individuals and corporations.  However, we call your
attention to the fact that interest on the Bonds will be taken into account in determining adjusted
current earnings for the purpose of computing the alternative minimum tax imposed on corporations
(as defined for federal income tax purposes).  We also call your attention to the fact that failure by
the Authority or the Institution to comply subsequent to the issuance of the Bonds with certain
requirements of the IRC may cause interest on the Bonds to become includable in the gross income
of the owners of the Bonds for federal income tax purposes retroactive to the date of issuance of the
Bonds.  The Institution and, to the extent necessary, the Authority have covenanted in the
Agreement to take all lawful action necessary under the IRC to ensure that interest on the Bonds will
remain excluded from the gross income of the owners of the Bonds for federal income tax purposes
and to refrain from taking any action which would cause interest on the Bonds to become included
in such gross income.  We express no opinion regarding any other federal tax consequences arising
with respect to the Bonds.

5. Under existing law, interest on the Bonds and any profit made on the sale thereof are
exempt from Massachusetts personal income taxes, and the Bonds are exempt from Massachusetts
personal property taxes.  We express no opinion as to other Massachusetts tax consequences arising
with respect to the Bonds nor as to the taxability of the Bonds or the income therefrom under the
laws of any state other than Massachusetts.

It is to be understood that the rights of the holders of the Bonds and the enforceability of the
Bonds and the Agreement are subject to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and
other similar laws affecting creditors’ rights heretofore or hereafter enacted to the extent
constitutionally applicable and that their enforcement may also be subject to the exercise of judicial
discretion in appropriate cases.

Yours faithfully,
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PROPOSED FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT

This Continuing Disclosure Agreement (the “Disclosure Agreement”) is executed and
delivered by Simmons College (the “Institution”) and J.P. Morgan Trust Company, National
Association (the “Trustee”) in connection with the issuance of $36,940,000 Massachusetts
Health and Educational Facilities Authority Revenue Bonds, Simmons College Issue, Series F
(the “Bonds”).  The Bonds are being issued pursuant to a Loan and Trust Agreement dated as of
May 12, 1998, as amended by that certain First Supplemental Agreement dated as of December
14, 1999, that certain Second Supplemental Agreement, dated as of May 8, 2001 and that Third
Supplemental Agreement dated as of April 8, 2003, each among the Massachusetts Health and
Educational Facilities Authority (the “Authority”), the Institution and the Trustee (as amended,
the “Agreement”), and the proceeds of the Bonds are being loaned by the Authority to the
Institution pursuant to the Agreement.  The Institution and the Trustee covenant and agree as
follows:

SECTION 1. Purpose of the Disclosure Agreement.  This Disclosure Agreement is
being executed and delivered by the Institution and the Trustee for the benefit of the Bondowners
(defined below) and in order to assist the Participating Underwriter (defined below) in
complying with the Rule (defined below).  The Institution and the Trustee acknowledge that the
Authority has undertaken no responsibility with respect to any reports, notices or disclosures
provided or required under this Disclosure Agreement and has no liability to any person,
including any Bondowner, with respect to any such reports, notices or disclosures.  The Trustee,
except as provided in Section 3(c), has undertaken no responsibility with respect to any reports,
notices or disclosures provided or required under this Disclosure Agreement, and has no liability
to any person, including any Bondowner, with respect to any such reports, notices or disclosures
except for its negligent failure to comply with its obligations under Section 3(c).

SECTION 2. Definitions.  In addition to the definitions set forth in the Agreement,
which apply to any capitalized term used in this Disclosure Agreement unless otherwise defined
in this Section, the following capitalized terms shall have the following meanings:

“Annual Report” shall mean any Annual Report provided by the Institution pursuant to,
and as described in, Sections 3 and 4 of this Disclosure Agreement.

“Bondowner” shall mean the registered owner of a Bond and any beneficial owner
thereof, as established to the reasonable satisfaction of the Trustee or Institution.

“Dissemination Agent” shall mean any Dissemination Agent or successor Dissemination
Agent designated in writing by the Institution and which has filed with the Institution, the
Trustee and the Authority a written acceptance of such designation.  The same entity may serve
as both Trustee and Dissemination Agent.  The initial Dissemination Agent shall be the Trustee.
In the absence of a third-party Dissemination Agent, the Institution shall serve as the
Dissemination Agent.

“Listed Events” shall mean any of the events listed in Section 5(a) of this Disclosure
Agreement.
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“National Repository” shall mean any Nationally Recognized Municipal Securities
Information Repository for purposes of the Rule.  The National Repositories as of the date of
execution of this Disclosure Agreement are listed in Exhibit B.

“Participating Underwriter” shall mean the original underwriter of the Bonds and any
other underwriter required to comply with the Rule in connection with offering of the Bonds.

“Repository” shall mean each National Repository and each State Repository, if any.

“Rule” shall mean Rule 15c2-12(b)(5) adopted by the Securities and Exchange
Commission under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as the same may be amended from time
to time.

“State Repository” shall mean any public or private repository or entity designated by
The Commonwealth of Massachusetts as a state repository for the purpose of the Rule.

SECTION 3. Provision of Annual Reports.

(a) The Dissemination Agent, not later than 195 days after the end of each fiscal year
commencing with the fiscal year ending June 30, 2003 (the “Filing Deadline”), shall provide to
each Repository an Annual Report which is consistent with the requirements of Section 4 of this
Disclosure Agreement.  Not later than fifteen (15) Business Days prior to said date, the
Institution (if it is not the Dissemination Agent) shall provide the Annual Report to the
Dissemination Agent.  In each case, the Annual Report may be submitted as a single document
or as separate documents comprising a package, and may cross-reference other information as
provided in Section 4 of this Disclosure Agreement; provided that the audited financial
statements of the Institution may be submitted separately from, and at a later date than, the
balance of the Annual Report if such audited financial statements are not available as of the date
set forth above.  If the Dissemination Agent submits the audited financial statements of the
Institution at a later date, it shall provide unaudited financial statements by the above-specified
deadline and shall provide the audited financial statements as soon as practicable after the
audited financial statements become available.  The Institution shall submit the audited financial
statements to the Dissemination Agent and the Trustee as soon as practicable after they become
available and the Dissemination Agent shall submit the audited financial statements to each
Repository as soon as practicable thereafter.  The Institution shall provide a copy of the Annual
Report to the Authority and the Trustee.

(b) The Dissemination Agent shall:

(i) determine each year within five (5) Business Days of the date for
providing the Annual Report the name and address of each National Repository
and the State Repository, if any (insofar as determinations regarding National
Repositories are concerned, the Dissemination Agent or the Institution, as
applicable, may rely conclusively on the list of National Repositories maintained
by the United States Securities and Exchange Commission); and

(ii) file a report with the Institution, the Authority and the Trustee
certifying that the Annual Report has been provided pursuant to this Disclosure
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Agreement, stating the date it was provided, and listing all the Repositories to
which it was provided (the “Compliance Certificate”); such report shall include a
certification from the Institution that the Annual Report complies with the
requirements of this Disclosure Agreement.

(c) If the Trustee has not received a Compliance Certificate by the Filing Deadline,
the Trustee shall send, and the Institution hereby authorizes and directs the Trustee to submit on
its behalf, a notice to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board and the Repository in
substantially the form attached as Exhibit A.

(d) If the Dissemination Agent has not provided the Annual Report to the
Repositories by the Filing Deadline, the Institution shall send, or cause the Dissemination Agent
to send, a notice substantially in the form of Exhibit A to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking
Board and the State Repository irrespective of whether the Trustee submits such notice.

SECTION 4. Content of Annual Reports.  The Institution’s Annual Report shall contain
or incorporate by reference financial information and operating data relating to the information
of the type provided in the following tables contained in the Official Statement dated April 16,
2003, pertaining to the Bonds, and in each case substantially in the same level of detail as is
found in the referenced page of such Official Statement:

Student Enrollments (pp. A-17-A-18)
Undergraduate Student Applications, Acceptances
     and Matriculations (pp. A-18-A-19)
Tuition, Room and Board Rates (p. A-20)
Student Financial Aid (pp. A-20-A-21)
Statement of Activities (pp. A-22-A-23)
Net Asset Allocation (p. A-24)
Endowment and Similar Net Assets (pp. A-24-A-25)
Gifts, Grants and Bequests (pp. A-25-A-26)

The financial statements provided pursuant to Section 3 of this Disclosure Agreement
shall be prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles, as in effect from
time to time.  The Institution shall provide financial statements in the form prepared by it
consistent with then applicable financial standards, and shall describe any change in presentation
from previous financial statements.  Any or all of the items listed above may be incorporated by
reference from other documents, including official statements of debt issues with respect to
which the Institution is an “obligated person” (as defined by the Rule), which have been filed
with each of the Repositories or the Securities and Exchange Commission.  If the document
incorporated by reference is a final official statement, it must be available from the Municipal
Securities Rulemaking Board.  The Institution shall clearly identify each such other document so
incorporated by reference.

SECTION 5. Reporting of Significant Events.

(a) This Section 5 shall govern the giving of notices of the occurrence of any of the
following events with respect to the Series F Bonds:
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1. Principal and interest payment delinquencies.

2. Non-payment related defaults.

3. Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial
difficulties.

4. Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial
difficulties.

5. Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform.

6. Adverse tax opinions or events affecting the tax-exempt status of the
Bonds.

7. Modifications to rights of security holders.

8. Bond calls (the giving of notice of regularly scheduled mandatory sinking
fund redemption shall not be deemed material for this purpose under clause (b) of this
Section).

9. Defeasances.

10. Release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the
Securities.

11. Rating changes.

(b) Whenever the Institution obtains knowledge of the occurrence of a Listed Event,
if such Listed Event is material, the Institution shall, in a timely manner, direct the Dissemination
Agent to file a notice of such occurrence with the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board and
each State Repository.  The Institution shall provide a copy of each such notice to the Authority
and the Trustee.  The Dissemination Agent, if other than the Institution, shall have no duty to file
a notice of an event described hereunder unless it is directed in writing to do so by the
Institution, and shall have no responsibility for verifying any of the information in any such
notice or determining the materiality of the event described in such notice.

SECTION 6. Termination of Reporting Obligation.  The Institution’s and the
Dissemination Agent’s obligations under this Disclosure Agreement shall terminate upon the
defeasance, prior redemption or payment in full of all of the Bonds or upon delivery to the
Trustee of an opinion of counsel expert in federal securities laws selected by the Institution and
acceptable to the Trustee to the effect that compliance with this Disclosure Agreement no longer
is required by the Rule.  If the Institution’s obligations under the Agreement are assumed in full
by some other entity, such person shall be responsible for compliance with this Disclosure
Agreement in the same manner as if it were the Institution, and the original Institution shall have
no further responsibility hereunder.
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SECTION 7. Dissemination Agent.  The Institution may, from time to time with notice
to the Trustee and the Authority, appoint or engage a third-party Dissemination Agent to assist it
in carrying out its obligations under this Disclosure Agreement, and may, with notice to the
Trustee and the Authority, discharge any such third-party Dissemination Agent, with or without
appointing a successor Dissemination Agent.  The Dissemination Agent (if other than the
Institution) may resign upon 30 days’ written notice to the Institution, the Trustee and the
Authority.

SECTION 8. Amendment; Waiver.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this
Disclosure Agreement, the Institution and the Trustee may amend this Disclosure Agreement
(and the Trustee shall agree to any amendment so requested by the Institution so long as such
amendment does not adversely affect the Trustee’s rights or immunities hereunder or increase its
duties hereunder) and any provision of this Disclosure Agreement may be waived, if such
amendment or waiver is supported by an opinion of counsel expert in federal securities laws
acceptable to both the Institution and the Trustee to the effect that such amendment or waiver
would not, in and of itself, violate the Rule.  Without limiting the foregoing, the Institution and
the Trustee may amend this Disclosure Agreement if (a) such amendment is made in connection
with a change in circumstances that arises from a change in legal requirements, change in law, or
change in the identity, nature or status of the Institution or of the type of business conducted by
the Institution, (b) this Disclosure Agreement, as so amended, would have complied with the
requirements of the Rule at the time the Bonds were issued, taking into account any amendments
or interpretations of the Rule, as well as any change in circumstances; and (c) (i) the Trustee
determines, or the Trustee receives an opinion of counsel expert in federal securities laws and
acceptable to the Trustee to the effect that, the amendment does not materially impair the
interests of the Bondowners or (ii) the amendment is consented to by the Bondowners as though
it were a supplement to the Agreement pursuant to Section 1101 of the Agreement.  The annual
financial information containing the amended operating data or financial information will
explain, in narrative form, the reasons for the amendment and the impact of the change in the
type of operating data or financial information being provided.

SECTION 9. Additional Information.  Nothing in this Disclosure Agreement shall be
deemed to prevent the Institution from disseminating any other information, using the means of
dissemination set forth in this Disclosure Agreement or any other means of communication, or
including any other information in any Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event,
in addition to that which is required by this Disclosure Agreement.  If the Institution chooses to
include any information in any Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event, in
addition to that which is specifically required by this Disclosure Agreement, the Institution shall
have no obligation under this Disclosure Agreement to update such information or include it in
any future Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event.

SECTION 10. Default.  In the event of a failure of the Institution or the Dissemination
Agent to comply with any provision of this Disclosure Agreement, the Trustee may (and, at the
request of registered Bondowners representing at least 25% in aggregate principal amount of
Outstanding Bonds, shall), take such actions as may be necessary and appropriate, including
seeking specific performance by court order, to cause the Institution or the Dissemination Agent,
as the case may be, to comply with its obligations under this Disclosure Agreement.  Without
regard to the foregoing, any Bondowner may take such actions as may be necessary and
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appropriate, including seeking specific performance by court order, to cause the Institution or the
Dissemination Agent, as the case may be, to comply with its obligations under this Disclosure
Agreement.  A default under this Disclosure Agreement shall not be deemed an Event of Default
under the Agreement, and the sole remedy under this Disclosure Agreement in the event of any
failure of the Institution or the Dissemination Agent to comply with this Disclosure Agreement
shall be an action to compel performance.

SECTION 11. Duties, Immunities and Liabilities of Trustee and Dissemination Agent.
As to the Trustee, Article VII of the Agreement is hereby made applicable to this Disclosure
Agreement as if this Disclosure Agreement were (solely for this purpose) contained in the
Agreement.  The Dissemination Agent (if other than the Institution) shall have only such duties
as are specifically set forth in this Disclosure Agreement, and the Institution agrees to indemnify
and save the Dissemination Agent (if other than the Institution), its officers, directors, employees
and agents, harmless against any loss, expense and liabilities which it may incur arising out of or
in the exercise or performance of its powers and duties hereunder, including the costs and
expenses (including attorneys fees) of defending against any claim of liability, but excluding
liabilities due to the Dissemination Agent’s negligence or willful misconduct.  The obligations of
the Institution under this Section shall survive resignation or removal of the Dissemination Agent
and payment of the Bonds.  The Institution covenants that whenever it is serving as
Dissemination Agent, it shall take any action required of the Dissemination Agent under this
Disclosure Agreement.

The Trustee shall have no obligation under this Disclosure Agreement to report any
information to any Repository or any Bondowner.  If an officer of the Trustee obtains actual
knowledge of the occurrence of an event described in Section 5 hereunder, whether or not such
event is material, the Trustee shall timely notify the Institution of such occurrence, provided,
however, that any failure by the Trustee to give such notice to the Institution shall not affect the
Institution’s obligations under this Disclosure Agreement or give rise to any liability by the Trustee
for such failure.

SECTION 12. Beneficiaries.  This Disclosure Agreement shall inure solely to the benefit
of the Institution, the Trustee, the Dissemination Agent, the Participating Underwriter and the
Bondowners, and shall create no rights in any other person or entity.
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SECTION 13. Disclaimer.  No Annual Report or notice of a Listed Event filed by or on
behalf of the Institution under this Disclosure Agreement shall obligate the Institution to file any
information regarding matters other than those specifically described in Section 4 and Section 5
hereof, nor shall any such filing constitute a representation by the Institution or raise any
inference that no other material events have occurred with respect to the Institution or the Bonds
or that all material information regarding the Institution or the Bonds has been disclosed.  The
Institution shall have no obligation under this Disclosure Agreement to update information
provided pursuant to this Disclosure Agreement except as specifically stated herein.

Date:  April 23, 2003 SIMMONS COLLEGE

By:                                                                         
Authorized Officer

J.P. MORGAN TRUST COMPANY, NATIONAL
ASSOCIATION,
as Trustee

By:                                                                         
Authorized Officer
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EXHIBIT A

NOTICE TO REPOSITORIES OF FAILURE TO FILE ANNUAL REPORT

Name of Issuer: Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities Authority

Name of Bond Issue: Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities Authority Revenue
Bonds, Simmons College Issue, Series F

Name of Obligated Person:  Simmons College

Date of Issuance: April 23, 2003

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that Simmons College (the “Institution”) has not provided an
Annual Report with respect to the above-named Bonds as required by the Continuing Disclosure
Agreement dated as of April 23, 2003 between the Institution and J.P. Morgan Trust Company,
National Association, as Trustee.

Dated:

_____________________________________
J.P. MORGAN TRUST COMPANY, NATIONAL
ASSOCIATION,
as Trustee and Dissemination Agent
on behalf of Simmons College

cc:  Simmons College
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EXHIBIT B

NRMSIRs

Bloomberg Municipal Repository
100 Business Park

Skillman, New Jersey 08558
PH:  (609) 279-3225

FAX:  (609) 279-5962
http://www.bloomberg.com/markets/muni_contactinfo.html

Email:  MUNIS@Bloomberg.com

DPC Data Inc.
One Executive Drive

Fort Lee, New Jersey  07024
PH:  (201) 346-0701

FAX:  (201) 947-0107
http://www.dpcdata.com

E-mail:  nrmsir@dpcdata.com

FT Interactive Data
Attn:  NRMSIR

100 William Street
New York, New York  10038

PH:  (212) 771-6999
FAX:  (212)771-7390 (Secondary Market Information)

(212) 771-7391 (Primary Market Information)
http://www.interactivedata.com
Email:  NRMSIR@FTID.com

Standard & Poor’s J. J. Kenny Repository
55 Water Street, 45th Floor

New York, New York 10041
PH:  (212) 438-4595

FAX:  (212) 438-3975
www.jjkenny.com/jjkenny/pser_descrip_data_rep.html

Email:  nrmsir_repository@sandp.com

MSRB

Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board
1150 18th St., NW, Suite 400

Washington, DC  20036
Phone: (202) 223-9347
Fax: (202) 872-0347
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Financial Guaranty Insurance 
Company 
125 Park Avenue 
New York, NY  10017 
(212) 312-3000 
(800) 352-0001 

A GE Capital Company 

 
 

Municipal Bond 
New Issue Insurance Policy 

Issuer:        Policy Number:       

  Control Number: 0010001 

Bonds:       
 

Premium:       
   
 
Financial Guaranty Insurance Company (“Financial Guaranty”), a New York stock insurance company, in 
consideration of the payment of the premium and subject to the terms of this Policy, hereby unconditionally and 
irrevocably agrees to pay to State Street Bank and Trust Company, N.A., or its successor, as its agent (the 
“Fiscal Agent”), for the benefit of Bondholders, that portion of the principal and interest on the above-described 
debt obligations (the “Bonds”) which shall become Due for Payment but shall be unpaid by reason of 
Nonpayment by the Issuer. 
 
Financial Guaranty will make such payments to the Fiscal Agent on the date such principal or interest becomes 
Due for Payment or on the Business Day next following the day on which Financial Guaranty shall have 
received Notice of Nonpayment, whichever is later.  The Fiscal Agent will disburse to the Bondholder the face 
amount of principal and interest which is then Due for Payment but is unpaid by reason of Nonpayment by the 
Issuer but only upon receipt by the Fiscal Agent, in form reasonably satisfactory to it, of (i) evidence of the 
Bondholder’s right to receive payment of the principal or interest Due for Payment and (ii) evidence, including 
any appropriate instruments of assignment, that all of the Bondholder’s rights to payment of such principal or 
interest Due for Payment shall thereupon vest in Financial Guaranty.  Upon such disbursement, Financial 
Guaranty shall become the owner of the Bond, appurtenant coupon or right to payment of principal or interest 
on such Bond and shall be fully subrogated to all of the Bondholder’s rights thereunder, including the 
Bondholder’s right to payment thereof. 
 
This Policy is non-cancellable for any reason.  The premium on this Policy is not refundable for any reason, 
including the payment of the Bonds prior to their maturity.  This Policy does not insure against loss of any 
prepayment premium which may at any time be payable with respect to any Bond. 
 
As used herein, the term “Bondholder” means, as to a particular Bond, the person other than the Issuer who, at 
the time of Nonpayment, is entitled under the terms of such Bond to payment thereof.  “Due for Payment” 
means, when referring to the principal of a Bond, the stated maturity date thereof or the date on which the same 
shall have been duly called for mandatory sinking fund redemption and does not refer to any earlier date on 
which payment is due by reason of call for redemption (other than by mandatory sinking fund redemption), 
acceleration or other advancement of maturity and means, when referring to interest on a Bond, the stated date
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SPE
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Financial Guaranty Insurance 
Company 
125 Park Avenue 
New York, NY  10017 
(212) 312-3000 
(800) 352-0001 

A GE Capital Company 

 
 

Municipal Bond 
New Issue Insurance Policy 

 
for payment of interest.  “Nonpayment” in respect of a Bond means the failure of the Issuer to have provided 
sufficient funds to the paying agent for payment in full of all principal and interest Due for Payment on such 
Bond. “Notice” means telephonic or telegraphic notice, subsequently confirmed in writing, or written notice by 
registered or certified mail, from a Bondholder or a paying agent for the Bonds to Financial Guaranty.  
“Business Day” means any day other than a Saturday, Sunday or a day on which the Fiscal Agent is authorized 
by law to remain closed. 
 
In Witness Whereof, Financial Guaranty has caused this Policy to be affixed with its corporate seal and to be 
signed by its duly authorized officer in facsimile to become effective and binding upon Financial Guaranty by 
virtue of the countersignature of its duly authorized representative. 
 
 

 
President 
 
 
 
Effective Date:       Authorized Representative 
 
 
 
State Street Bank and Trust Company, N.A., acknowledges that it has agreed to perform the duties of Fiscal 
Agent under this Policy. 
 
 
       

 
       
Authorized Officer       
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